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i i April 4, 2003
Fiscal Services P

221 N. 5 St * P.O. Box 5503
Bismarck, ND 58506-5503

The Honorable Mayor,
Members of the City Commission,
And Citizens of Bismarck, North Dakota

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Bismarck, North Dakota for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2002 is hereby submitted. A complete set of financial statements is presented
'in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited by an independent
licensed certified public accounting firm in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards and
applicable laws.

Management is responsible for the accuracy, completeness and, reliability of the financial statements.
Management believes the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
and results of operations of various funds, account groups and component units, including all disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to achieve a full understanding of the City of Bismarck's activities.

CONTENT OF CAFR

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections:

1. Introductory Section: This section is unaudited. It includes this transmittal letter, the City
organizational chart, and a list of principal elected and appuainted officials.

2. Financlal Section: This section includes the general-purpose financial statements, the combining
individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules, and the independent
auditor's report,

3. Statistical Section: This section is unaudited. it includes financial and non-financial data that
presents historical trends and other information about the city on a multi-year basis.

4. Single Audit Section: This section includes a schedule of federal financial assistance and the
independent auditor's reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The financial reporting entity includes all funds and account groups of the primary government, the City of
Bismarck. There are no component units that are defined as legally separate entities for which the
primary government is financially accountable. The City of Bismarck provides a full range of services,
such as police and fire protection, sanitation services, construction and maintenance of highways, streets
and infrastructure, water and wastewater utility service, solid waste disposal, municipal airpart, library,
and cultural centers and events.



GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE

The City operates under a commission form of government, consisting of a President and four
commissioners. The governing commission is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances,
adopting the budget, appointing committees, the city administrator, and city attormey and hiring
department heads. The city administrator is responsible for carrying out policies and ordinances of the
governing boady and for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City. Commission members are
elected to a four year staggered term with two commission members elected every two years. The
president is elected to a four-year term and also serves as the Mayor of the City.

LOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City of Bismarck, incorporated in 1875, is North Dakota’s state capitol and is located in the center of
the state in Burleigh County, bounded on the west by the Missouri River. The City currently has a fand
area of 27.99 square miles and an estimated population of 56,798. The City is empowered to levy a
property tax on real estate located within its boundaries. The City also has the power by state statute to
extend its corporate limits by annexation, which is done pericdically by the governing body of the City.

Although the area's largest Industry is farming, the City is also a major medical center for the region. The
City continues to seek economic diversification. To support this effort, the citizens of Bismarck voted to
dedicate a portion of sales tax revenue to be used io atfract new business and industry to the City. The
Vision Fund Commitiee administers this funding and has yielded some positive resuits, which included
the relocation of US HealthCare, Unisys, Sykes and Coventry Health Care offices to Bismarck. Coventry
Health Care Inc. opened a service center in Bismarck and is expected to hire up to 400 staff members
and have a total annual payroll of $10 million within three years. The City authorized a $2.5 million
financial package for Coventry that included employment incentives, building lease provisions, workforce
training and property and corporate tax exemptions. The City Commission also established the Mayor’s
Committee on Economic Development to develop a community-wide plan for economic development.
The Committee’s recommendations will be presented o the Commission in 2003.

An important factor instrumental in attracting new industry, business, and families to the Bismarck area is
the exceptionally low crime rate. The City of Bismarck continues to enjoy one of the lowest crime rates in
the country. Members of the Bismarck Police Department are committed to working with members of our
community to ensure this trend continues. The Police Department is also the only accredited Municipal
Law Enforcement agency in the state.

Taxable sales and purchases continued to increase in 2002 as compared o 2001 for Bismarck. This
growth is evidenced by the 6.22% increase in sales tax and 6.83% increase in the motel, restaurant and
liguor tax in the year 2002,

New construction continues to expand the tax base. In 2002, 231 building permits were issued for
residential construction within the City's corporate limits. This included 210 single-family homes and 21
multi-family homes, which provided an additional 382 residential units. Residential construction in the
City's extraterritorial jurisdiction and the adjacent zoned areas of Burleigh County also continues to grow
with a total of 219 single-family building permits issued in 2002

Bismarck continues to experience growth in its tax base through both property value enhancement and
new construction. Growth in the property tax base for the year 2002 was 4.86%. The fable below
pravides the percentage change by property classification,

2002 2001 Percentage
Property Class Market Value  Market Value Change
Commercial $ 795,339,500 $§ 766,745,200 373 %
Residential 1,526,711,000 1,447,672,900 546 %
Agricuitural 565,400 646,400 (1253} %

Total $ 2,322,615,900 $2,215,064,500 4.86 %
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MAJOR INITIATIVES 2002 AND FUTURE YEARS

The citizens approved a ballot measure authorizing Sales Tax funds to support the 2002 Community
Betterment Plan. This included $400,000 for the establishment of a fixed-route bus system in Bismarck;
$300,000 for Recreational Trails to continue the development of the trail system within the City; $250,000
for surfacing and lighting of the Community Bow! parking lot; $500,000 for the Century High School
gymnasium; $50,000 for a feasibility study for a community arts and science center; $50,000 for
emergency siren system; and $1,400,000 for a new Fire Station and building renovation for the Combined
Communications Center.

The Lewis & Clark Bicentennial Committee was also authorized $750,000 as part of the Community
Betterment Plan. The funding will help support the Fort Lincoin Foundation with the signature event
scheduled in October 2004, infrastructure development of the Legacy Center and other community evenis
associated with the Lewis & Clark bicentennial.

In June the City Commission authorized the first phase of the multi-year new terminal area project for the
Bismarck Municipal Airport. This phase includes reconfiguration of the airport entrance/exit roadway and
parking lot system and demolition of the clder addition of the terminal. The second phase, which includes
construction of the terminal, is expected to begin in the spring of 2003. The Commission has set the total
project cost at $24.2 million. The Federal Aviation Administration will provide approximately 70% of the
funding and the City Lodging/Restaurant tax will provide $1 million with the balance from Airport
reveniues.

The Public Works Department moved to its new building in August. The building comprises 115,000
square feet with additional storage space provided for de-icing sand. The new facility is very functional
with madern shops and labs including a state-of-the-art mechanics shop with overhead cranes and
multiple bays. The Commission authorized the construction of the $10.3 million building project in 2000.

The Commission authorized the planning and design of a new Fire Station. East and northeast Bismarck
has experienced much of the City’s growth and this new station will be strategically located in the
northeast area to help ensure adequate response time to fire scenes. The engine company at the current
North Fire station wouid be relocated to the new station site at 2510 East Divide. The construction cost of
the new station is estimated fo be $200,000.

Bismarck and Burleigh County authorized the relocation of the Combined Communications Center to the
former National Weather Service Station at the Bismarck Airport. The Center has been looking for an
alternate site since groundwater and bad air forced it to vacate the basement of the Law Enforcement
Center in September of 1988, The City accepted bids in the amount of $875,000 for the renovation of the
building with funds from the City and County to supplement the Sales Tax Funding. The Center plans to
move to the new location in the spring of 2003.

The City authorized $1,000,000 for the first phase of the remodeling of the Law Enforcement Center, The
basement has already had the ashestos and lead contamination removed and drainage tile installed to
address the water infiltration problems. The first phase will provide for the restoration of the basement by
providing for new floors and ceiling, additional rooms and a shooting range.

DEPARTMENTAL ACTIVITIES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Civic Center reported that attendance at various events totaled 431,071 for 2002 up 21% from last
year. The Civic Center provides a wide variety of entertainment that now includes Broadway shows. The
Civic Center signed a five year agreement with Jam Theatricals to annually bring four Broadway shows to
Bismarck starting in the fall. The Civic Center installed a new lighting and grid system in the arena to
provide the proper setting for these productions.

The Fire Department received delivery of two new custom-made Quint fire trucks. The new fire trucks
function as a traditional fire engine or aerial platform or ladder truck. By consolidating these features, the
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Quints can replace single-function trucks. The new trucks replace a 1971 fire truck and 1978 aerial
platform.

The Combined Communication Center received corporate donations to help initially fund a new
emergency notification system. The system will use 24 phone lines to simultaneously call residents in a
given area and deliver a 20-second message. The system's ability to alert hundreds of residents of an
emergency message will provide a potentially lifesaving service to the community. The system should be
operational in 2003.

The Bismarck Airport has increased security at its facility following the terrorist attacks last fall. The
Transportation Security Administration, a federal agency responsible for airport security, now handles the
heightened security procedures. The new screening measures should provide passengers with an
increased sense of safely and better customer service.

The Commission authorized a feasibility study for a regional airline service. Under this proposal,
Bismarck could become the hub city for the regional service using small passenger jets. Additional
potential partners may include major cities in South Dakota, Montana, Wyoming and Winnipeg, Canada.
The consultants report is expected to be submitted to the Commission in the spring of 2003. The study is
funded by a federal grant from the Department of Transporiation.

The Commission approved a nine-month moratorium on new subdivisions within the two-mile
extraterritorial area (ETA) of the City. The Planning Department will use this time to review the City's
existing development and complete a Fringe Area Growth Management Plan for the ETA by September
2003 The main objective of the plan is to safeguard the ability of the City to continue growth in an orderly
and efficient way and to manage the transition of the development from rural to urban.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BUDGET: The City adopts an annual appropriated budge! approved by the City's governing body. This
budget is normally adopted by October 1* for the upcoming year. Activities of the General Fund and
Special Revenue Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget in accordance with the N.D.C.C.
and the City of Bismarck's Home Rule Charter Budgets are prepared at the detailed level although the
tevel of budgetary control is established at the department level. Department heads may transfer
appropriations within a depariment, Commission approval is needed to transfer appropriated funds from
one fund to another fund. The entire budget can only be amended by ordinance and with commission
approval. The City also maintains an encumbrance system as a technique of accomplishing budgetary
control. Encumbered amaounts are reported as reservations of fund balance at year-end. All charges for
fees and services are reviewed and adjusted at the time of budget approval by the governing board. A
five year capital projects budget Is also updated and approved by the governing board.

INTERNAL CONTROL.: Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
framework. Internal control is designed to provide reasonable and not absolute assurance regarding:

1. The safeguarding of assets against loss, thefl, or misuse, and
2. The reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability
for assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of control should not outweigh the benefits
derived and that the valuation of cost and benefits require management's judgment and estimates.
Management belisves that the City's internal control over financial reporting provides reasonable
assurance of proper recording and assets are adequately safeguarded.

AUDIT: State statutes and local ordinances require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants. The firm of Eide Bailly LL.P was selected by the City's audit committee to audit the financial
statements of the City of Bismarck. The audit provides reasonable assurance about wheth er the financial
statements are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
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accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. Eide Bailly LLP concluded that the audit provides a reasonable
basis for an unqualified opinion and the City of Bismarck's financial statement for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2002 are in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The
auditor's report is presented in the financial section of this repart.

Federal funds received by the City are also subject fo an independent audit under the requirements of the

Singe Audit Act of 1896 and Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. The Auditor's reports and
results of this audit are cantained in the Single Audit Section of this financial report.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS AND GENERAL FUND BALANCE

The following scheduie presents a summary of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt
Service Funds revenues and operating transfers in for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.

Amount of Percent of

2002 Percent 2001 Percent Increase Increase

Revenues and Transfers Amount of Total Amount of Total  (Decrease) (Decrease)
Taxes $ 20,237,309 3570% 5 18,898,071 39.89% $ 1,339,238 7.08 %
Licenses and permits 1,021,652 1.80% 991,339 2.09% 30,313 306 %
Speclal assessments 4,960,733 B.75% 5,062,951 10.69% (102,218} {2.02) %
intergovernmental 7,808,873 13.93% 7,374,184 15.56% 524,689 7.12 %
Charges for services 4,424 915 7.80% 4,246,430 8.96% 178,485 420 %
Fines and Forfeits 1,034,585 1.82% 958,229 2.02% 76,356 7.97 %
Investment Income 1,282,774 2.26% 2,055,685 4.34% (772,811) {37.60) %
Land/Equipmeny/Buliding Sales & Rental 489,456 0.88% 403,250 0.85% 98,206 2386 %
Miscellaneous 17,110 0.21% 41,613 0.09% 75,497 18143 %
Operating transfers in 15,217,097 26.84% 7,345,351 158.50% 7,871,746 10717 %
Total $ 56,694,504 100.00% $ 47,377,103 100.00% § 9,317,401

Revenue Discussion:

The largest dollar value increase is in Operating transfers category. This increase is the result of
reporting Vision Fund separately from Sales Tax. The revenue is now reflected as a transfer. Taxes also
reflect a large increase due to increased property values and increased taxable sales and purchases.
The large percentage increase in Miscellaneous revenue is attributed to an increase in department
donations. Investment Income reflects the largest dollar value and percentage decline. This reduction is
direct result of a decrease in the interest rate earned on City funds.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service
Funds expenditures and operating transfers out for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.



Amount of Percent of

2002 Percent 2001 Percent Increase increase

Expenditures and Transfers Amount of Total Arnount of Total {(Decrease) (Decraase)
Current:

General Government $ 9,205,332 15.77% % 5,813,893 14.00% § 3,391,439 58.33 %

Public Safety 10,174,805 17.43% 9,759,129  23.50% 415,678 426 %

Highways and Streets 4,665,493 7 .99% 4,489,716 10.81% 178,777 392 %

Heaith and Welfare 943,627 1.62% 857,885 2.07% 85,732 299 %

Cuilture and Recreation 3,217,681 551% 3,210,837 7.73% 6,844 021 %
Capital Outlay 2,239,523 3.84% 1,086,027 2.62% 1,153,496 10621 %
Debt Service:

Principal 5,855,360 10.03% 5,380,065 12.96% 475,295 883 %

Interest and Fiscal Charges 2,094,524 3.59% 2,350,011 5.66% (255487) (10.87) %
Cperating transfers out 19,972,656  34.22% 8,574,287  20.85% 11,398,260 13294 9%
Total % 58,368,801 100.00% $ 41,521,860 100.00% 5 16,847 041

Expenditures Discussion;

Operating transfers out has the largest dellar value and percentage increase. A majority of the increase
is due to a reporting change in the Vision Fund with revenue from Sales Tax to this fund reported as a
transfer out. It also reflects the transfer of Sales Tax bond proceeds to projects in the Community
Betterment Plan. There is also an increase in Capital Outlay expenditures that is directly attributed to the
purchase of two new fire trucks in the Fire & Inspections Depariment. The increase in General
Government is in part atiributed o a reporting change in the Planning & Development Department that
now includes HUD and MPO activities. The other increases in this area reflect salary and benefit
adjustments for emplayees and an increase in government grant expenditures.

OTHER INFORMATION

Proprietary Operations

The following is a two year comparison of financial statistical data for the Airport, Airport Flightline
Operation, Solid Waste Utllity, Water and Sewer Utility, Parking Authority Lots, Health Insurance, Liability
Insurance and Unempioyment Compensation. Closure and post closure costs for the landfill are
recognized as a part of the Saolid Waste Utility operating expense. Total operating expenses for all
enterprise funds include depreciation.

Adrport Airport Flightline Operation
2002 2001 2002 2001
Total operating revenues $ 2,483,657 % 2,293,195 5 772,171 & 754,406
Total aperating expenses {3,151,056)  (3,055,530) (756,849) {734,840)
Total nonoperating revenues 3,027,554 1,710,647 9,599 13,702
Total nonoperating expenses (15,034) “ - -
Transfers {59,197) {42,426) {15,770) (11,278)
Net gain (loss) $ 2285924 % 905,886 ] 9,151 § 21,990
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Total operating revenues
Total operating expenses
Total nonoperating revenues
Total nenoperating expenses
Transfers

Net gain (loss)

Solid Waste Utility

Water & Sewer Ulility

2002 2001 2002 2001
§ 3,815,376 § 3,708,190 § 13,000,703 § 11,018,706
(3,476,334)  (3,045,509) (8,528,245)  (7,557,712)
208,933 440,554 1,074,380 1,538,652
(52,895) - (100,619) (87,983)
(233,495) (46,841) (213,234) (371,282)

“§ T 261,585 § 1,056,394

$ 5322985 § 5,440,381

Parking Authority Lots Employee Insurance

2002 2001 2002 2001
Total operating revenues $ 774679 § 781,162 $ 2104106 § 2,052,460
Total operating expenses (660,390) {715,721) (2,092,479) (2,035,861)
Total nonoperating revenues 9,181 14,237 98,312 202,141
Totlal nonoperating expenses (15,305) (17,570) - -
Transfers (211,694) (208,612) {89,566) (28,584)
Net gain (loss) $ (103529) § (146,504) % 20373 & 190,108

Liability Insurance Unemployment Compensation

2002 2001 2002 2001
Total operating revenues 5 - 3 - 3 - % -
Total operating expenses (379,973) {428,572) {20,735) (11,679)
Total nonoperating revenues 235,165 240,078 2,109 4,429
Total nonoperating expenses - - - -
Transfers (17,428) (24,8599) 4,990 2,772

Net gain {loss) $  (162,236) 5 (213393) § (13,636) 3 (4,478)

The increase in non-operating revenues at the Airport reflects an increase in federal grants for
construction of the new terminal, which results in a net gain increase.

The increase in operating expenses for Solid Waste Ulility is attributed to increased activities in the
disposal of hazardous materials, composting and tree grinding as well as a major purchase of frash
containers for the automated collection process. The decrease in non-operating revenue reflects a
reduction in investment income due to lower interest rates. The increase in the transfers out reflects cost
of service and franchise fee revenue to Roads and Streets.

The increase in operating revenue for the Water and Sewer Utility is the result of an increase in sales and
rate increases. The increased sales also account for a part of the increased operating expenses with the
balance of the increase attributed to increased depreciation expense. The decrease in non-operating
revenue reflects a decline in investment earning attributed to lower cash investments and lower rate of
return.

The increase in operating expenses for Employee Insurance is directly atfributable to increased cost of
employee heaith insurance claims.

Fiduciary Operations

The City of Bismarck participates in three separate defined benefit pension plans. An actuarial study
conducted December 31, 2002, showed an actuarial accrued liability of $27, 538,000 for the City
Employee pension plan, $13,697,000 for the Police pension plan. As of December 31, 2002, 104.9% of
the City pension plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued Hability, 99.0% of the Police pension plan’s unfunded
actuarial accrued liability has been funded with net assets available for benefits. The information for the
Firefighters pension plan was not available from the Bismarck Firefighter's Relief Association, an entity
independent of the City of Bismarck that administers the Firefighters pension plan.

Vil



Debt Administration

The ratio of general obligation debt to assessed valuation and the amount of general obligation debt per
capita are helpful indicators of the City's debt position to management and the users of this report.

Net Direct Ratio of Debt to Debt per
Year Bonded Debt  Present Assessed Value Capita
2002 $ 41,526 0.00004 $ 073

Qutstanding general obligation bonds at December 31, 2002, totaled $60,000. in addition the amount of
special assessment bonds outstanding is $32,470,000. Note F of the General Purpose Financial
Statements presents more detailed information about the debt position of the City. Debt issued during
2002 includes $5,035,000 in special assessment bonds and $3,050,000 in special revenue bonds. Each
of these recelved an Aa2 rating from Moodys. These ratings are consistent with previous ratings received
from this agency.

Cash Management

All cash balances of the City are invested in investments that are insured or registered or for which
securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. The amount of income earned on the
investments for the City was $2,555,286 for the fiscal year. The City Employee pension and Police
pension had a net investment loss of $2,983,460 for the fiscal year. As of December 31, 2002, the City's
investments (exclusive of cash on hand and cash deposits) of 582,681, 384 were invested as follows:

US Government securities $ 37,130,326
Investment in state investment board pool 31,442,590
investment in mutual funds (Kemper) 11,589,276

Securities lending shart-term collateral
investment pool 2,519,192
Total investments $82 681,384

Risk Management

The City of Bismarck maintains two self insurance funds. The General Liability fund is structured so that
only expenses relating to covered liabilities of the City are charged against it. It does not provide
comprehensive coverage to City departments. The Municipal Airport Rlightline operation has a private
policy, which covers the general liability of the Airport with a $1,000 deductible.

The City also maintains a medical insurance fund. This fund provides payment of medical claims for all
full ime City employees and their dependents. This plan has an aggregate stop loss covered through
Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota, for all claims exceeding $50,000 per individual or 52,118,634 for
the plan year of 2002,

Other risk management achievements include the implementation of a city-wide safely program, which

provides for safety fraining, and accident prevention techniques. Establishing this program has resulted
in a considerable savings on the City's Workers Compensation premium.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Bismarck for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the year ended December 31, 2001. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
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comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. CAFRs must
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achlevement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to conform fo the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the dedicated services of the
Fiscal Services staff and the various department heads. Appreciation is expressed to all personnel who
assisted and contributed to its preparation. We acknowledge the thorough and professional manner in
which the audit was conducted by our independent auditors, Eide Bailly LLP. Appreciation is also
expressed to the Mayor and to all members of the City Commission for their interest and support in
planning and conducting the financial operation of the City of Bismarck in an exemplary manner
throughotit the year.

Respecifully submitted,

ﬂ]@é /J‘L:.’.M) tpr

Shella Hillman
Director of Finance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Members
of City Council

City of Bismarck

Bismarck, North Dakota

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Bismarck, North Dakota,
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002, as listed in the table of contents. These general purpose financial
statements are the responsibility of the city's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
general purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General at the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the City of Bismarck at December 31, 2002, and the results of its operations and cash
flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 4, 2003, on our
considerations of the City of Bismarck's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report
in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements of City of
Bismarck, North Dakota, taken as a whole. The accompanying combining, individual fund and account group
financial statements, supporting schedules and statistical data listed in the table of contents and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the City of Bismarck. Such information,
except for the statistical data marked unaudited, on which we express no opinion, has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

£, m\,o«%m// LLP

Bismarck, North Dakota

April
pril 4, 2003 —

1050 East Interstate Ave. » PO Box 1914 » Bismarck, North Dalwota 58502-1914 » 701 255 1091 » Fax 701 224 1582
Offices in Arizona, lowa, Minnesota, Montana, North Dalota and South Dakota — Equal Opportunity Employer
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Governmental Fund Types

Spacial Debt
General Revenue Service

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
ASSETS:
Cash and lnvasiments $ 14577615 $ 15,535,400 $ 3,601,340
Cash with Escrow Agent - - 1,838,748
Receivables {Net of Allowancas for Uncollectibles):
Taxes 222,133 82,348 5,000
Accounts 1,041,884 1,364,522 -
Speclal Assessments - - 258,917
Bue from Other Funds 15,249 67,621 7,660,484
intergovernmental - - 741,103
Notes Receivable - 250,000 -
inventaries - - -
Prepald ltems - - -
Advances o Other Funds - - -
Fixed Assests Held for Resale . - -
Customer Deposiis - Restricted - - .
Fixed Assets (Net Where Applicable,
of Accumuiated Deprecialton} - - -
OTHER DEBITS:
Amount Available in Debt Service Fund - - -
Amount {o be Provided for Retirement
of General Long-term Debt - -

TOTAL ASBSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 15,856,881 $ 17,299,891 $ 14,206,642

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 5 595,403 $ 161,778 $ .
Retainage Payable w R .
Leases Payable - - -
Claims and Judgements Payable - .
Due to Gther fFunds - 498,985 -
Due to Emplovees - . -
Due to Other Entities - - -
Advances from Other Funds - - -
Deferred Revenue 267,715 82,348 1,701,357
General Obligation Bonds Payable - - .
Special Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment - - -
Securities Lending Collateral - - -
Customer Deposits - - w
Revenue Bonds Payable - . -
Compensation Benefits Payable - - -
Accrued Closure/Post Closure Costs

TOTAL LIABILITIES 863,118 743111 1,701,357

EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS:
investment in General Fixed Assets - - -
Contributed Capital - - -
Relained Earnings:
Unreserved - - -
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances 89,859 - -
Reserved for Debt Service - - 10,565,487
Reserved for Refunding Bonds - - 1,839,798
Reserved for Advances to Other Funds “ - “
Reserved for Employee Benefits . -
Reserved for Long-Term Receivable - 250,000 -
Unreserved, undesignated 14,903,904 16,308,780

TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 14,893,763 16,556,780 12,505,285

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 15,856,881 § 17,209 801 $ 14,206,642

Sea Noles to tha Financlal Statements




Exhibit 1

Fiduciary

Proprietary Funds Funds Account Groups Totals
General General (Memorandum

Capital Internal Trust & Fixed Long-Term Only)

Projecis Enterprise Service Agency Assels Debt 2002
$ 9,363,328 $ 30957469 § 5,434,981 § 45,295441 $ - 8 - $ 124,765,574
- - - - - - 1,839,798
42,381 - 786 26,074 - - 378,722
444,105 1,305,393 162,836 27,608 - - 4,336,348
- 28,254 - - - - 287,171
494,085 200,355 - 27428 - - 8,474,232
1,357 - - - - - 742,480
- - - - - - 250,000
- 67,342 - - - - 67,342
- 24,123 - - - - 24,123
1,048,844 - - - - - 1,048,844
- 20,347 - - - - 20,347
773,988 3,007,131 185,390 - - - 3,866,509
- 140,350,881 - - 69,757,172 - 210,108,053
- - - - - 12,505,285 12,505,285
- - - - - 32,626,285 32,626,285
$ 12,168,008 $ 175870285 § 5773893 § 45376551 $ 69,757,172 § 45,131,570 $ 401,541,003
3 1269638 % 995,861 $ 207316 & 6,100 L - % - $ 3,326,096
345,399 427,823 - - - - 773,222
- 261,025 - - - - 261,025
- - 389,244 - - - 389,244
7,251,482 723,765 E - - - 8,474,232
- - - 12,380,670 - - 12,380,670
. - - 5,302 - - 5,302
- 1,048,844 - - - - 1,048,844
42,381 28,254 786 26,074 - - 2,148,915
- - - - - 60,000 60,000
- - - - - 32,470,000 32,470,000
- - - 2,446,605 - - 2,446,605
773,988 3,040,816 185,390 - - - 3,999,994
- - - - B 11,040,000 11,040,600
- 414,784 - - - 1,561,570 1,976,354
- 493,760 - - - - 493,760
9,682,888 7,434,732 872,736 14,864,751 - 45,131,870 81,204,263
- - - - 69,757,172 - 69,757,172
- 94,398,469 - - - - 94,398,469
- 74,137,084 4,901,257 - - - 79,038,351
- - - - - - 89,859
- - - - - - 10,565,487
- - - - - - 1,938,798
1,048,844 - - - - - 1,048,844
- - - 30,156,196 - - 30,156,196
- - - - - - 250,000
1,436,366 - - 355,604 - - 33,002,654
2,485,210 168,535,563 4,901,257 30,511,800 69,757,172 - 320,246,830
$ 12,168,098 $ 175,970,285 $ 5773893 § 45,376,551 $ 69,757,172 $ 45,131,570 $ 401,541,093




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Special Assessments
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Investment Income
Rentals
Miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Highways and Streels
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

Proceeds of Refunding Bonds

Payment of Refunding Bonds

Sales of General Fixed Assets

Bond Proceeds

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING

See Notes to the Firancial Statements

Governmental Fund

Special
General Revenue

3 7,992,409 $ 12,218,304
1,017,477 4175
4,556,312 3,341,817
3,150,777 1,274,138
825,640 108,945
457,109 658,113
112,394 387,062
91,664 25,446
18,303,782 18,014,000
4,706,342 4,498,990
10,021,985 152,820
1,537,043 3,128,450
943,627 -
1,876,039 1,341,642
1,564,242 675,281
20,649,278 9,797,183
{2,345,496) 8,221,817
3,813,614 8,880,377

(965,456) (18,612,399)

- 85,000

- 3,081,410

2,848,158 {6,565,612)
502,662 1,656,205
14,491,101 14,900,575
$ 14,093,763 § 16,558,780




Exhibit 2

Totals
Types Fiduciary {Memorandum
Debt Capital Expendable Only)
Service Projects Trust 2002
25,596 $ 1,114,984 - 21,352,293
- - - 1,021,662
4,960,733 9,670 - 4,970,403
744 1,869,748 - 9,868,621
- - - 4,424,915
- - . 1,034,585
167,552 217,497 1,832 1,502,103
- 100,000 - 599,456
- 23,779 37,452 178,341
5,154,625 3,435,678 38,284 44,952 369
- - - 9,205,332
- - . 10,174,805
- - - 4,665,493
- - - 043,627
- - 30,666 3,248,347
- 12,876,040 - 15,115,563
5,855,360 - - 5,858,360
2,094 524 - - 2,094,524
7,849,884 12,876,040 30,666 51,303,051
{(2,795,259) (8,440,362) 8,618 (6,350,682)
2,523,106 6,579,454 300,000 22,096,551
{394,701) (190,174) {1,035,364) {21,188,094)
1,989,999 - - 1,989,999
{4,825,000) - - (4,825,000)
- - - 85,000
- 3,013,528 - 6,094,938
{706,596) 9,402,808 (735,364) 4,243,394
(3,501,855) (37,554) {726,746) (2,107,288)
16,007,140 2,522,764 1,082,350 49,003,930
12,505,285 $ 2,485,210 355,604 46,896,642




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Infergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Investment Income
Rentals
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current;
General Government
Public Safety
Highways and Streets
Health and Weifare
Culture and Recreation
Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers in
Operating Transfers Qut
Sales of General Fixed Assets
Bond Proceeds
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING - budgetary basis
FUND BALANCES - ENDING - budgetary basis

See Notes i the Financial Stalements

General Fund

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
$ 8,348,183 $ 7,992,409 $ 7,487,920
914,725 1,017,477 976,512
4,503,984 4,556,312 3,586,421
2,250,553 3,150,777 3,031,769
884,812 925,640 899,382
353,900 457,109 792,180
135,150 112,394 123,613
106,458 91,664 14,949
17,497,765 18,303,782 16,912,746
5,752,767 4,751,442 3,624,831
10,250,539 10,021,985 9,609,498
1,641,431 1,537,043 1,432,959
980,312 943,627 B57,895
1,906,057 1,876,039 2,024,169
2,186,423 1,609,001 575,421
22,727,629 20,739,137 18,124,773
(5,229,764) (2,435,355) (1,212,027}
3,598,459 3,813,614 3,487,148
(960,775) (965,456) {95,360)
2,637,684 2,848,158 3,391,788
$ (2,592,080) 412,803 2,179,761
14,491,101 12,311,340
$ 14,903,904 $ 14,491,101




Special Revenue Funds

Exhibit 3

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
$ 11,669,430 $ 12,218,304 $ 11,062,889
4,000 4175 14,827
3,581,707 3,341,817 3,777,268
1,160,750 1,274,138 1,214,661
54,000 108,945 58,847
486,200 658,113 847,312
285,036 387,062 279,637
323,180 25,446 26,664
17,564,303 18,019,000 17,282,105
6,147,792 4,498,990 2,189,062
261,594 152,820 148,631
3,508,228 3,128,450 3,056,757
1,421,656 1,341,642 1,186,668
764,200 675,281 510,608
12,103,470 9,797,183 7,002,724
5,460,833 8,221,817 10,189,381
672,092 8,880,377 554,009
{12,208,509) (18,612,399) (7,762,830)
- 85,000 -
- 3,081,410 -
(11,5636,417) (6,565,612) (7,207,831)
$ (6,075,584) 1,656,205 2,981,550
14,900,575 11,919,025
$ 16,556,780 $ 14,900,575




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Employer Contributions
Miscellaneous
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

CPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of Sales and Services
Administration
Deapreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Intergovernmental
Special Assessments
Gain on Disposal of Assets
Investment income
Taxes
interest Expense
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

OPERATING TRANSFERS
Transfer From Other Funds
Transfer (To) Other Funds
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS

NET INCOME
DEPRECIAITON ON ASSETS ACQUIRED
WITH CAPITAL GRANTS

RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING as previously reported

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING as restated

RETAINED EARNINGS - ENDING

See Notes lo the Financial Statemenis

Exhibit 4

Totals
Proprietary Fund Types {Memorandum
Internal Only)
Enterprise Service 2002
$ 20,936,586 $ 1,669,727 $ 22,606,313
- 2,094,848 2,094,848
- 20,234 20,234
20,936,588 3,784,809 24,721,395
9,534,283 4,087,548 13,621,831
1,855,025 480 1,885,505
5,183,566 - 5,183,566
16,572,874 4,088,028 20,660,302
4,363,712 (303,219) 4,060,483
3,193,810 139,989 3,333,799
280,969 - 280,969
{123,578) - (123,578)
854,560 198,623 1,053,183
- 308 308
{59,867) - {59,967}
4,145,794 338,920 4,484,714
8,509,506 35,701 8,645,207
- 4,980 4,890
{733,390} {193,996) (927,386)
{733,390) (189,006} (922,398)
7,776,116 (153,305) 7,622,811
1,245,885 - 1,245,885
65,419,030 5,054,562 70,473,592
{303,937) - {303,937)
65,115,093 5,054,562 70,169,655
$ 74,137,094 $ 4,901,257 § 79,038,351




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received From Customers and Users
Cash Received From Employer
Other Operating Cash Receipts
Cash Paid to Suppliers
Cash Paid to Employees

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenue
Transfers From Other Funds
Transfers (to) Other Funds

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Lease Payment
Interest Paid
Proceeds from advances
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Construction
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received
NET CASH PROVIDED
BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING

See Noles to the Financia Statements

Exhiblt 5

{continued on next page}

Totals
Proprietary Fund Types {Memorandum

internal Only)

Enterprise Service 2002
$ 19,984,213 $ 3,897,909 $ 23,882,122
- 2,081,278 2,081,278
- 20,234 . 20,234
(7,991,153) {6,444,926) (14,436,079)
(3,815,607) - {3,815,607)
B, 177,453 (445,505) 7,731,948
- 308 308
3,193,810 139,289 3,333,798
- 4,980 4,980
(733,390) {153,996) {927,386)
2,460,420 {48,709) 2411711
(168,170} - {168,170)
(55,392) - (55,392)
1,048,844 - 1,048,844
(30,725) - {30,725)
(676,454) - (676,454)
(13,947,137} - {13,947,137)
{13,829,034) - {13,829,034)
854,560 198,623 1,053,183
854,560 198,623 1,053,183
{2,336,601) {295,591) {2.632,192)
33,294,070 5,730,572 30,024,642
$ 30,957,469 $ 5,434,981 $ 36,392,450




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FL.OWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

REPORTED IN THE BALANCE SHEET AS FOLLOWS:
Cash and Investments

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Inceme (Loss)
Adjustments to Recancile Opearating income to
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense
(Increase) decrease in Taxes Recejvable
(Increase) decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) decrease in Due From Other Funds
(Increase) decrease in Inventories
(Increase) decrease in Prepaid ltems
Increase (decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (decrease) in Retainage Payable
Increase (decrease) in Deferred Revenue
Increase {decrease) in Estimating Pending Claims
Increase {decrease) in Due to Other Funds
increase {decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable
increase (decrease} in Closure/Post Closure Costs
Total Adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH CAPITAL ACTIVITIES:
Construction of Fixed Assets Contributed
through Capital Project Funds

See Notes o the Financial Stalements

Exhibit 5

{continued from previous page)

Totals
Proprietary Fund Types {(Memorandum
Internal Only)
Enterprise Service 2002
$ 30,957 469 & 5,434,981 $ 36,392,450
4,363,712 {303,219) 4,060,493
5,183,566 - 5,183,566
- 756 756
(743,018) (130,165) (B73,183)
(209,355) - {209,355)
{22,424} - (22,424)
97 “ 97
(862,293) 108,025 (754,268)
427 823 - 427,823
- {329) (329)
- {120,573} (120,573}
(89,862) - (89,862)
29,653 - 209,653
99,554 - 99,554
3,813,741 (142,286) 3,671,455
$ 8,177,453 B {445,805) $ 7,731,048
3 1,464,007 $ - 5 1,464,007




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

ADDITIONS
CONTRIBUTIONS:
Employer
Employee
INVESTMENT INCOME:
Loss on Investments
Interest and Dividends
Securities Lending Income

Less: Investment Expense
Less: Securities Lending Expenses
Net investment income (loss)
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS:
TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS
Administration
Benefils
Transfers fo Other Funds
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING
NET ASSETS - ENDING

See Notes {o the Financial Statemens

Exhibit 6

Totals
{Memorandum
City Police Only)
Pension Pension 2002
$ 409,855 5 203,630 $ 613,485
403,216 10,216 413,432
(2,637,016) (1,373,7786) (4,010,792)
815,536 389,201 1,204,737
36,056 14,647 50,703
(1,785,424) {969,928) (2,755,352}
(120,345) (63,368) (183,711)
(31,661) (12,736) (44,397)
(1,937,430) (1,046,030) (2,983,460)
37,640 16,625 54,265
(1,086,719) (815,559) (1,902,278)
16,528 12,383 28,911
1,372,832 488,258 1,861,080
17,919 12,407 30,326
1,407,279 513,048 1,920,327
(2,493,998) (1,328,607) (3,822,605}
22,650,248 11,328,553 33,978,801
$ 20,156,250 $ 9,999,946 $ 30,156,196

10
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Bismarck was incorporated in 1875. The City operates under a city commission form of
government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: Public Safety (Police and
Fire}, Streets, Sanitation, Health, Culture and Recreation, Public improvements, Planning and Zoning,
General Administrative Services, Airport Facilities, Solid Waste Collection and Disposal, and Water and
Sewer Ultilities.

The financial statements of the City of Bismarck, North Dakota, have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles {GAAP) as applied to governmental units and the
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB). The more significant of
the City's accounting policies are described below:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

For financial reporting purposes the City's financial statements include all funds and account groups.
There are no component units of the City of Bismarck. Generally, component units are legally separate
organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government (i.e. the City) are financially
accountable. The City would consider an organization to be a component unit if:

1. The City appoints a voling majority of the organization's governing body AND
(a) is able fo impose its will on that organization OR
{b} thereis a potential for the organization to provide specific financial burdens on the
City; OR

2. The organization is fiscally dependent upon the City; OR

3. The nature of the relationship between the City and the organization is such that the
exclusion from the financial reporting entity would render the financial statements of the City
misleading

B. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accounts of the City are organized in funds and account groups. A fund is an independent fiscal
and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds
according to their intended purpose, and is used by management to demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained
consistently with City Ordinances and the North Dakota Century Code. Account groups are a reporting
device to account for fixed assets and liabilities of the governmental funds not recorded directly into
those funds.

1. Governmental Funds

Governmentai funds are used to account for the City's general government activities. Governmental
fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under a modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
they are susceptible to accrual {i.e., when they are "measurable and available"). "Measurable” means
the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current
period or in time to pay liabilities for the current period. The City considers all revenues available if
they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related liability
ocours, except for non-matured interest on general long-term debt, which is recognized when due, and
compensated absences that are recognized when the obligations are expected fo be liguidated with
available financial resources.
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Praperty taxes, cable franchise fees, licenses, interest and special assessments are susceptible to
accrual. Sales tax; Motel, Liguor, Restaurant tax; motor vehicle fees and the 2% Motel tax collected
and heid by the state at year end on behalf of the City are also recognized as revenue. Other receipts
become measurable and available when hilled on the accounts receivable system.

Shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if susceptible to accrual. Expenditure-
driven granis are recognized as revenue when the expenditures have been obligated and all other
grant requirements have been met.

2. Types of Governmental Funds

General Fund - The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. 1t accounts for all financial
resources of general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service funds account for the servicing of the general long-term debt that
is not financed by proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds.

Capital Projects Funds - The capital projects funds account for the acquisition of fixed assets and/or
construction of major capital projects that are not being financed by proprietary funds.

3. Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the
accrual basis of accounting. Using this method, the revenues are recorded as earned and expenses
are incurred at the time of the encumbrance of the liability.

The City's financiat statements have been prepared in accordance with GASB Statement No. 20,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting.” The City accounts for its Proprietary activities in accordance with all
applicable GASB pronocuncements, as well as pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Stan dards
Board (FASB) and its predecessors issued on or before November 20, 1988, unless those
pronouncements confilct with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Proprietary funds include the following fund types:

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are used for those operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business or where the board decides the fees to be charged and the net
income necessary for management accountability.

Internal Service Funds -~ Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other
departments of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis.

4. Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used {o account for assets held on behalf of ocutside parties, including other
governments, or on behalf of other funds within the government in the form of a formal trust agreement.

Expendable Trust - The expendable trust fund is accounted for in almost the same manner as the
governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting. These frust
funds account for assets where both principal and interest may be spent.

Nonexpendable Trust Fund - The pension trust fund Is accounted for in essentially the same manner as
proprietary funds, using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting. The pension trust
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funds account for the assets of the police and city employees pension plan. The nonexpendable trust
funds account for assets where both principal and interest may not be spent.

Agency Fund - The agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present resuits of operations in this
report or have a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for by using the modified accrual
basis of accounting. These funds are used o account for assets that the City holds for others in an
agency capacity.

5. Account Groups

General Fixed Asset Account Group - The general fixed asset account group is used lo account for
fixed assets not accounted for in proprietary or frust funds.

General Long-term Debt Account Group - The general ong-term debt account group is used to account
for general long-term debt and other liabilities that are not a specific liability of proprietary or trust funds
of the City.

C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY
1. Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
Investments are stated at fair market value.

2. Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions cccur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other
funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

Property value is assessed as of the second Tuesday in April of each year. The property taxes are
levied and attached as an enforceable lien by January 1* of the preceding year. A 5% discount is
allowed if payment is received by February 15". The tax levy is divided into two payments due March
1* and October 15", Penalty and interest is assessed on any delinquent payment.

3. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental
fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased. These amounts are immaterial.

4. Prepaid ltems

The Enterprise Funds record any payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods
beyond December 31, 2002, as prepaid items. The cost of services to governmental type funds is
recorded as an expenditure when paid rather than the benefited period.

5. Fixed Assets

General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital
acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and the related
assels are reported in the general fixed assets account group. All purchased fixed assets are valued at
cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical
records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
received.
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The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized, Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of the related fixed assets, as applicable.

The City does not report public domain or “infrastructure” fixed assels, roads, curbs, gutters, sidewalks,
streels, street lights, and similar assets that are immovable and of value only to the governmental unit
in the general fixed asset account group. All infrastructure fixed assets are reported in the proprietary
fund types and depreciation is computed using the straight-line method.

Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated. Depreciation of all exhaustible
fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as depreciation expense against their operations.
Depreciation recognized on grants, entitlements, and shared revenues is closed to the related
contributed capital. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful life, using the straight-
line method, as follows:

Buildings 20 - 80 Years
Improvements other than buildings 25 - 50 Years
Smaill equipment 2-10 Years
Heavy equipment 5-10 Years

6. Compensated Absences/Termination Benefits
Sick Leave

A new plan for compensated absences commenced on December 31, 1992, It established a maximum
number of accumulated sick leave hours that could be accrued. The maximum hours for employees
working a forty-hour work week is 960 and the maximum hours of accumulated sick leave is 1272 for
all employees working a 53-hour workweek. Excess sick leave will be paid to all employees at a rate of
forty percent of their excess hours over 960/1272 annually. These payments will be made out of the
fund in which the liability cccurs.

On December 31, 1992 the outstanding accumulated sick leave hours of all employees having over
960/1272 hours were reduced by twenty five percent. The number of reduced hours multiplied by their
rate of pay per hour, became the amount of pay the employee will receive at termination of their
employment. If the employee had less than 960/1272 hours they were given an option, to either
reduce their hours by twenty five percent or retain the hours in order to reach the 860/1272 maximum
at a faster pace. If they chose the option to reduce their hours, this number was multiplied times their
rate per hour to establish the amount of compensation they will receive at termination.

The total amount of compensation is funded by an annual departmental contribution at the rate of ten
percent of the total for fen years or until such time the fund is sufficient to fully meet the obligation. The
funds will be held in an agency fund until all employees employed on December 31, 1992 will have
terminated their employment. The $92,608 in the Deferred Compensation Payable in the General Long
term Debt Account Group is the amount owed by the governmental funds. The proprietary funds are
cbligated for an additional $27,428.

Annual Leave

The annual leave plan allows employees to accrue annual leave with pay based on their years of
service with the City as follows:
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0 -3 years 96 hours per year
4 -7 years 120 hours per year
8 -12 years 144 hours per year
13- 18 years 168 hours per year
over 18 years 192 hours per year

Fire employees who have a regular workweek in excess of forty hours per week are granted annual
leave at a rate adjusted to take into account the extra hours so their annual leave Is comparable to the
leave granted for forty hour per week employees.

Annual leave accrued during the calendar year may be accumulated but shall in no case exceed a total
of 360 hours for all employees except fire employees who work a regular work week in excess of forty
hours, may accumulate 477 hours. On January 1 of each year all excess leave is forfeited without
compensation.

Regular part-time employees shall earn a prorated number of vacation days payable at their current
rate of compensation,

At the time of the employee’s termination of employment, the unused hours are paid to him at his
current rate of pay. The hours will be paid up to 360 hours for regular employees and 477 hours for
firemen.

All of the accumulated hours are brought to the current rate of pay on December 31, to establish the
value in the funds. The amount in the compensated absences line item $1,468,962 is the value of the
employees annual ieave hours on December 31, 2002. In proprietary funds, compensated absences
are expensed when earned. The entire amount of unpaid compensated absences is reported as a fund
liability.

7. Long-term Obligations

The government funds recognize long-term debt as a liability in the general Jong-term debt account
group. For other obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available
financlal resources are reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of
such obligations are reported in the general long-term debt account group. Long-term labilities and
other obligations expected o be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those
funds.

Long-term liabilities are being repaid from the following funds:

Obligation Fund
General Obligation Bonds Highway Construction
Highway Construction Debt Service Fund
Revenue Bonds Motel Liguor Restaurant
Motel Liquor Restaurant Bonds Tax Fund
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Sales Tax Revenue Fund
Special Assessment Bonds Watermains, Sewermains, Sidewalks,

Street Improvements, and Parking Lot
Debt Service Funds
Employee Termination Benefits General, Library, and Roads and Streets
Compensated Absences General, Library, and Roads and Streets
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8. Fund Equity

Government funds report reserved fund balance, which represent those portions of fund equity that are
either not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designations of
fund balance or retained earnings are tentative management plans that are subject to change.

9. Bond Discountsf/issuance Costs

In governmental fund types, bond discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current period.
Bond discounts and issuance costs for proprietary fund types have not been material and as such have
heen recognized in the period paid.

10. Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Totat columns on the general-purpose financial statements are captioned "memorandum only” to
indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not
present financial position, results of operations or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted
accaunting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have
not been made in the aggregate of this data.

11. Reclassification of Funds
In prior years, the Vision Fund activity was reported within the Sales Tax Fund. In the current year,
management determined that better financial information would be provided if the activity of these two

funds were reported separately. Therefore, $6,060,010 of the Sales Tax Fund's fund balance was
transferred to the Vision Fund in 2002.

. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The City adopts an annual budget approved by the Board of City Commissioners. The budget is
adopted on a basis (budget basis) which differs from generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP
basis). The budget and all transactions are presented in accordance with the City’s method (budget
basis) in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —
Budget and Actual — General and Special Revenue Funds to provide a meaningful comparison of
actual results with the budget. The major differences between budget and GAAP basis in the General
Fund are that encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budget) as opposed to a
reservation of fund balance (GAAP). Activities of the General Fund and the Special Revenue Fund are
included in the annual appropriated budget in accordance with the N.D.C.C.

Adjustments necessary to convert the General Funds' excess of revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses on the budget basis to a GAAP basis are provided below:

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses - budget basis $ 412,803

End of year adjustment for encumbrances not
recognized as expenditures 80,859

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses - GAAP basis $§ 502,662
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Although the Special Revenue Funds are prepared on the budget basis, no differences exist between
GAAP basis and budget basis in these funds.

The level of budgetary control is established at the department level. The department is allowed to
transfer appropriations within its department from one account number to another. Commission
approval is required for the transfer of appropriations from one department to another. The entire
budget can be amended only by ordinance and commission approval.

By the first Tuesday in August, the proposed budget is presented o the governing body for review.
The governing body holds public hearings and may modify the proposed budget. The final budget
must be adopted before October 1st.

The City also maintains an encumbrance system as a technique of accomplishing budgetary control.
Encumbrances represent commitments related to uncompleted contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is utilized
in the General Fund. For budgetary purposes appropriations lapse at year end except for that portion
related to encumbered amounts. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations
of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be
honored during the subsequent yvear.

1. Deficits in Fund Balance

The following individual funds had deficits at December 31, 2002, as measured by the balances in the
total fund balance or retained earnings as follows:

Capital Projects Funds: Amount
Civic Center Building Construction $ 116,962
Sewermains Construction 586,156
Watermains Construction 250,264
Sidewalks Construction 396,780
Street Improvements Construction 6,322,264

Enterprise fund:
Parking Authority Lots 3,134,178

Sewermains Construction, Watermains Construction, Sidewalks Construction and Street Improvement
Construction will be funded through a sale of general obligation and special assessment bonds in May
of 2003. Civic Center Building Construction will be funded from the Arena Exhibit Special Revenue
fund.

The Parking Lot Authority received contributed capital of $2,161,574 in 1993 from the bond sales in the
Tax Increment Fund and has a total contributed capital of $10,047,648. Beginning in 1994, the Parking
Lot Authority transfers funds for payment of the bonds {o the Tax Increment Fund. The transfer of the
bond payment results in a negative retained earnings balance. In 2002, Parking Lot Authority had
operating income of $114,289.

2. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended December 31, 2002, expenditures exceeded budget at the department level (i.e.,
the legal level of budgetary control) as follows:
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Fund/Depariment Excess
Mote!, Hotel Tax Fund $48,552

The City remits 90% of the occupancy tax collected to the Bismarck-Mandan Convention and Visitor's
Bureau. The occupancy tax collected in 2002 exceeded the amount estimated to be collected at
budget time. Therefore, the expenditures exceeded the budgeted amount by a proportionate amount
of the excess occupancy tax collected.

lll. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

A. Deposits

In accordance with state statutes, the City maintains deposits at those depository banks and savings
and loans authorized by the City Commission, all of which are covered by federal deposit insurance.
These statutes also require that the deposits be protected by insurance, collateral or surety bond. The
fair value of the collateral pledged must be equal to or greater than 110% of the deposits not coverad
by insurance or bonds. The only exception is for funds that are deposited with the Bank of North
Dakota, which is owned and backed by the full faith and credit of the State of Narth Dakota.

The City maintains a cash pool that is available for use by all funds. The pool invests in short-term
certificates of deposit. The peol provides the City the ability to maximize earnings by investing larger
amounts of idle cash for longer periods of time. Interest earnings are allocated to funds based upon
their cash balance at the time the investment was purchased,

At December 31, 2002, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $47,940,218 and the bank
balance was $48,721,337, all of which was insured and collateralized.

B. Investments

North Dakota state statutes authorize local governments to invest in:

a) bonds, treasury bills and notes, or other securities that are a direct obligation of, or an
obligation insured or guaranteed by, the freasury of the United States, or its agencies,
instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress,

b) securities sold under agreements to repurchase written by a financial institution in which the
underlying securities for the agreement to repurchase are of the type listed above,

¢) certificates of depaosit fully insured by the federal deposit insurance corporation or the state,

d} obligations of the state, In addition to the above-mentioned investments, Pension Trust funds
are authorized to invest all or part of their surplus funds in other investments by selecting a
funding agent or agents to hold and invest such funds for the board and shall be placed for
investment only with a firm or firms whose primary endeavor is money management,

Investment Category

Investments are categorized to give an indication of the leve! of risk assumed by the eptity at year-end,
Category 1 - investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by

the City or its agent in the City's name. The following is a summary of the City's investments at
December 31, 2002
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Category Fair Market
1 Value
US Government Securities $37,130,326 $37,130,326
Investments in siate investment board pool 31,442,590
Investmenis in mutual funds (Kemper) 11,589,276
Securities lending short-term collateral investment pool 2,519,192
Total Investments $82.681,384

The US government securities and the Kemper mutual funds are based on fair value for these
investments.
State Investment and Securities Lending Pool

North Dakota Retirement and Investment Office (NDRIO) manages the state investment and securities
lending pools. NDRIO manages the City Employee pension and Police pension and enters into
security lending {ransactions. As part of these fransactions, securities are loaned versus collateralized.
At year-end, the pension plans have no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amount the
plans owe the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe the plans. The investment includes
cash, U.S. government securities and irrevocable letters of credit. U.S. securities valued at 102% of
the market value of the securities plus any interest and non-U.5. securities collateral valued at 105% of
the market value of the securities plus any accrued interest. Non-cash collateral cannot be pledged or
sold unless the borrower defaults. Cash is invested in a short-term investment pool. The investment
pool is not registered with the SEC and is regulated by the North Dakota Century Code. The fair
market value of the investment pool is the same as the value of the pooled investment shares. A
reconclliation of cash and investments as shown on the Combined Balance Sheet is as follows:

Cash on hand 3 50,279
Carrying amount of deposits 47,940,218
Fair Value of investments ' 82,681,384

Total % 130,671,881
Cash and investments $ 126,705,372
Customer deposits 3,966,509

Total $ 130,671,881

Burleigh County Water Users Investment

On January 5, 1996, the City of Bismarck entered into a contract with Burleigh County Water Users, fo
furnish the rural citizens with water for the next 40 years. The Burleigh County Water Users deposited
$2,300,000 up front to buy a specific number of gallons each year at a rate of $.397 per biiling unit of
100 cubic feet of water. The funds were invested in United States Zero Coupon Treasury Bonds with
an annual maturity date to meet the current water obligation. Each year the Cily recognizes the value
of these bonds at fair market value. The funds are held as deposits. if the Burleigh County Water
Users elected to cancel the contract, the deposit would be refunded at the current fair market value.
The value of the deposits in the Water and Sewer Utility fund at December 31, 2002 was $3,007,131.

C. Receivables

Receivables at December 31, 2002 consist of the following:
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Special Debt Capital internal TFrust/
Receivables; General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Service Agency
Taxes - Real Estate & Mobile 3 222133 § 82,348 § 5000 % 42,381 & - & 786 § 26,074
Accounts Recelvable - Trade 1,041,884 1,364,522 - 444,105 1,305,393 152,836 27,608
Special Assessment - 258,917 - 28,254 - -
Due from Other Funds 15,249 67,621 7,660,484 494,095 209,355 - 27,428
MNotes Receivable - 250,000 - - - - -
Intergovernmental - - 741,103 1,357 - -
Advances from Other Funds - - - 1,048,844 - -
Total Receivables $ 1,279266 3 1,764,491 5§ B665504 $ 2,030,782 § 1,543,002 $ 153622 § 81,110

D. Fixed Assets

The following is a summary of changes in the general fixed assets account group during the fiscal year:

Balance Balance
General fixed assets: 1/1/2002  Additions Retirements 12/31/2002
Land $ 1,689,788 § - 8 - $§ 1,689,788
Buildings 46,154,050 1,399,008 - 47,553,058
Improvements other than buildings 51,777 - - 51,777
Machinery & Equipment 17,310,001 2,224 558 630,501 18,804,058
Construction in progress - 1,558,491 - 1,568,491
Totals $65,205616 $5,182,057 3§ 630,501 $69,757,172

The following is a summary of proprietary fund-type fixed assets at December 31, 2002

Enterprise; 12/31/2002
Land $ 7,748,421
Buildings and system 59,363,446
Improvemenits ather than buildings 125,271,876
Machinery & Equipment 9,048,297
Construction In progress 5,312,436
Less: accumulated depreciation (67,293,595)
Totals $ 140,350,881

E. Self-insurance

There have heen no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and setiled claims
resuiting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

General Liability insurance

The City has established a general liability self-insurance fund. The fund is structured so that only
expenses retating to covered liabilitles of the City are charged against it. The Fund eamns interest and
is subject to periodic funding from property taxation as deemed necessary by the Board of City .
Commissioners. The City has purchased a separate airport liability policy that is primary coverage at
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the airport. There is a deductible of $1,000 per claim. The self-insurance fund does not provide
cuollision or comprehensive automotive coverage for the city.

N.D.C.C. Chapter 32-12.1 provides that for aclions in tort, the City has a liability limitation of $250,000
per claim with a $500,000 aggregate limit per event. At December 31, 2002 management estimates
claims incurred hut not paid of $274,904 . This amount has been recorded as 2 liability. Settled claims
have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Employee Insurance

The City has also established a medical self-insurance fund. The purpose of this fund is to pay medical
claims for the City of Bismarck and Parks and Recreation employees and their covered dependents
and to minimize the total cost of annual medical insurance premiums paid by the City of Bismarck.
Medical claims exceeding $50,000 per individual per year is covered through Blue Cross and Blue
Shield of North Dakota. The Plan also has aggregate stop loss coverage of $2,118,634 for 2002,

City of Bismarck
Self-Insurance Funds
Changes in Aggregate Claims Liability
For the year ended December 31, 2002

Liability Insurance Employee Insurance
2002 2001 2002 2001
Unpald claims & claim adjustment expenses
at the beginning of the fiscal year $259,817 § 68400 & 250,000 § 250,000

Unpaid claims & claim adjustment expenses:
Provisions for insured events of the current fiscal year 189,858 266,852 1,715,179 1,491,852
Increases {decreases) in provision for insured events

of prior fiscal years 55,139 {401) {88,378) (133,048)
Total claims & claim adjustment expenses 504,815 334,851 1,876,801 1,608,804
Payments:

Claims & claim adjustment expenses attributable to
insured events of:

Current year (159,367)  (34,731)  (1,715,179) (1,491,852)

Prior year (70,544)  (40,303) (47,282) 133,048
Total payments (229,911) (75,034) (1,762,461) (1,358,804)
Total Unpaid claims & claim adjustment expenses at

the end of the fiscal year $274,904 $259,817 $ 114,340 $ 250,000

Setiled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

State Fire and Tornado and Bonding Fund

The City participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the State Bonding Fund. The
City pays an annual premium for the Fire and Torpado Fund to cover damage to buildings and
contents. Estimating replacement cost in consultation with the Fire provides replacement cost
coverage and Tornado Fund. The Fire and Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance
carrier for losses in excess of one million dollars per occurrence during a twelve-month period. The
State Bonding Fund currently provides the City with blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of
$5,000,000 for its employees. The State Bonding Fund does not currently charge any premium for this
coverage.
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Worker's Compensation

The City participates in the North Dakota Worker's Compensation Bureau. The Bureau is a state

insurance fund and a "no fault" insurance system covering the employees and is financed by premiums

assessed fo employers for businesses throughout the State, The premiums are available for the
payment of claims to employees injured in the course of employment.

F. Long-term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

The government issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction

of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and
credit of the government. The legal debt margin as of December 31, 2002 was $58,065,398 with a
remaining non-obligated margin of $58,023,872. City general obligation bonds currently outstanding
are as follows:

Date of Original Amount  Amount  Amount Amaount
Dateof  Final Interest Amount  OQutstanding lssued Retired  Quistanding
(General obligation bonds fssue Payment Rate of Issue 11/2002 02002 in2002  12/31/2002
Highway consfruction 1892  5/1/1992 6&/1/2002 4.00-625% $ 1,150,000 $ 155,000 § - § 155000 % -
Highway construction 1995  5/1/1995 6/1/2003 4.30-4.87% 380,000 115,000 - 55,000 60,000
Highway construction 1897  5M/1997 6/1/2002 4.25-4.80% 340,000 75,000 - 75,000 -
Total highway construction $ 1,870,000 $ 345000 § - $ 285000 § 60,000
Annual debt service requirements to maturily for general obligation bonds are as follows:
Years General Obligation
2003 61,463
Subtotal 61,463
Less: amount representing interest (1,463)
Total $ 60,000
Revenue Bonds
The government has also issued bonds where the government pledges income derived from current
operations to pay debt service. Revenue bonds outstanding at December 31, 2002 are as follows:
Date of Qriginal Amount Amount Amount Amount
Date of Final Interest Amount Qutstanding lssued Retired Outstanding
Revenue Bonds Issue Payment Rate of Issue 11112002 in 2002 in 2002 12/31/2002
Motel, liquor, restaurant 61111998 12/112013 3.25-640% $ 9,400,000 $ 8,430,600 § - $ 440,000 % 7,880,000
Sales tax bonds 511511097 101112002 4 60-4 BO% 5,720,000 1,265,000 - 1,265,000 -
Sales tax bonds : 6/15/2602 5/1/2005 3 00-3 25% 3,050,000 - 3,050,000 - 3,050,000
Total Special Revenue Bonds $ 18,170,000 % 9,895,000 § 3,050,000 % 1,705,000 $ 11,040,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for revenue bonds are as follows:
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2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
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2008-2013

Subtotal
lLess: amount representing interest

Total

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Special Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment

Revenue Bonds

1,927,748
1,955,348
1,863,204
1,544,622
1,585,410
6,122,105

15,098,437
{4.058,437)

$11,040,000

Special assessment bonds were issued annually to meet the cost of construction of street lights,
streets, sewermains, watermains, sidewalks, and public parking lots. The annual installment of
principal and interest is met by special assessments levied against the benefiting property owners. In
the event special assessment taxes are insufficient to meet principal and interest payments on bonds,
the governing body is required to levy a general tax on all taxable property within the city for the
payment of the assumption upon the maturity of the last bond principal instaliment, pursuant to City
ordinance and N.D.C.C. Special assessment bonds outstanding at December 31, 2002 are as follows:

Date of Original Amount Amount Amount Amount

Special Assessment Dats of Final Interest Amount Qutstanding Relired Outsianding

Bonds Issue  Payment Rate of issle 1/1/2602 in 2002 n 2002 1213112062

Series C refunding 5/1/1995 6/1/2010 480-512% § 3845000 § 2445000 3 - § 2445000 3 -
Serles D refunding 3281996 5/1/2005 4004 70% 4,185,000 1,035,000 - 400,000 635,000
Serias F refunding 7986 612011 4 85-5.25% 4,630,000 3,070,000 - 3,070,000 -
Series G refunding 5151897 6/1/2012 500-5.20% 4.025,000 2,765,000 - 420,000 2,345,000
Series M refunding 6MM998  5/1/2013 4004.70% 3,815,000 3,075,000 - 370,000 2,705,000
Series | refunding 5/1/1999  6/1/2008 3 50-3.70% 3,465,000 2,435,000 - 385,000 2,050,000
Series J refunding 5111899 5/1/2614 4.00-4 40% 3,920,000 3,520,000 - 440,000 3,120,000
Series K refunding 5/1572000 5M/2015 5.00-5.60% 3,530,000 3,530,060 - 455,000 3,035,000
Series | refunding 4/30/2001 6M/2011 4.00-4.50% 6,140,000 6,030,000 - 195,600 5,835,000
Series M refunding 5152001 5M1/2616 4.00-5 10% 5,310,000 5,310,000 - - 5,310,000
Series N refunding 6/15/2002 5M/20%7 3.304 30% 2,480,600 - 2,480,000 - 2,480,000
Series O refunding 1111272002 6/12012 2.10-4.00% 1,990,000 - 1,880,000 - 1,980,000
Total refunding series $ 47435000 § 33215000 $ 4470000 $ 5,180,000 3 29,505,000
Sidewalk 92 6/1/1992 6/1/2002 330570% § 270,000 % 30,000 & - % 30000 % -
Sidewalk 93 6/1/1993 &/1/2003 3004 00% 750,000 160,000 " 80,000 80,000
Sidewalk 94 67111994  8/1/2004 3905 10% 660,000 210,000 - 70,000 140,000
Sidewalk 95 7/111996  6/1/2006 4 50-5 30% 415,000 225,000 - 45,000 180,000
Sidewalk 26 SM5/1897 G/1/2007 4 40-5 20% 580,000 380,000 - 65,000 325,000
Sidewalk 97 6/1/4988 5M/2008 4 00-4 55% 590,000 455,000 - 65,000 380,000
Sidewalk 8 5171989  4/1/2009 3 90-44.30% 570,000 510,000 - 60,000 450,000
Sidewalk 59 §15/2000 5/1/2010 5 20-5.00% 480,600 480,000 - 65,000 415,000
Sidewalk 00 5I15/200% 5172011 4 304 70% 420,000 420,000 - - 420,000
Sidewaik 01 6/15/2002 5M/2012 2 30-4.15% 565,000 - 565,000 - 565,000
Total sidewalk bonds $ 5310,000 § 2.860,000 % 565,000 § 480,000 $ 2,865,000

Total special assessment bonds

§ 52,745,000 § 36,085000 $ 5,035,000

$ 8660,000 § 32,470,000

In the current year, the City issued $1,890,000 of general obligation refunding bonds, Series O that
refunded Series G. The transaction resuited in an economic gain of $66,297 and a reduction of

$95,263 in future debt service payments.
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Special Assessment Debt Requirement to Maturity

Special assessment bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Special
Years Assessment
2003 $ 7,503,515
2004 5,366,556
2008 4,795,408
2006 4,301,133
2007 3,868,507
2008-2012 9,981,907
2013-2017 2,515,416
Subtotal 38,332,442
Less: amount representing interest (5,862,442)
Total $32,470,000

G. Changes in Long-term Liabiiities

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the following changes in liabilities occurred in the general
tong-term debt account group:

Balance Balance
Outstanding Outstanding
1/1/2002 issued Retired 12/31/2002
General Obligation Bonds S 345000 § - § 285000 % 60,000
Special Revenue Bonds 8,605,000 3,050,000 1,705,000 11,040,000
Special Assessments Bonds 36,095,000 5,035,000 8,660,000 32,470,000
Deferred Sick Leave 185,214 - 92,606 92,608
Compensated Absences 1,292,164 841,638 664,840 1,468,962
Total $47,612,378 $ 8,926,638 $11,407,446 $45,131,570

H. Capital Lease

The City has entered into a lease agreement to finance the mechanical portion of the parking ramp
remodeling project for the Parking Lot Authority. This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for
accounting purposes and, therefore, it has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments as of the inception in the Parking Lot Authority enterprise fund.

The asset acquired through this capital lease is as follows:
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Buildings and Systems $ 405,000
Less: Accumulated depreciation (40,500)

Total g 364,500

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as
of December 31, 2002 were as follows:

Year ending December 31

2003 $ 58,217
2004 58,217
2005 58,217
2006 58,217
2007 58,217
2008 4,851
Total minimum lease payments $ 295937
Less: amount representing interest (34,912)

Present value of minimum lease payments § 261,025

l. Industrial Revenue Bonds

From time to time, the City has approved issuance of Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial
assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial
facilittes deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the financed property and are
payable solely from payments recelved on the underlying mortgage lcans. Ownership of the acquired
facilities will transfer to the private-sector entity upon repayment of the bonds. Neither the City, the
state, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liahilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of
December 31, 2002, there were 4 series of Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding; the aggregate
principal amount payable is unknown. Neither the State of North Dakota nor the Clly of Bismarck has a
central repository. The only requirement for this type of issue is to request the amount needed for City
approval. Most of the time this amount is in excess of the actual amount issued. When completely paid
or called, they must notify the City of this event,

J. Interfund Assets/Liabilities

Details pertaining to interfund receivables and payables are as follows:
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Receivable fund (due from) Payable fund {due to) Amount J
Watermains Debt Service Watermains Capital Projects $ 246,224
Sewermains Debt Service Sewermains Capital Projects 442,396
Sidewalks Debt Service Sidewalks Capital Projects 229,723 {
Street Improvements Debt Service Street Improvements Capital Projects 6,045,804 i
Watermains Debt Service Water and Sewer Uitility Enterprise Fund 696,337
Water and Sewer Uitility Enterprise Fund Sewermains Capital Projects 209,355
General Fund Library Special Revenue Fund 4,890 f
Generat Fund Community Development 9,002
General Fund Bismarck/Mandan Visitor's Bureau 1,357
Arena/Exhibit Operations Special Revenue Civic Center Building Canstruction 67,621 /
Tax Increment Capital Projects Arenal/Exhibit Operations Special Revenue 484,095
Tax Increment Capital Projects Parking Authority Enterprise Fund 1,048,844
Deferred Sick Leave Trust & Agency Fund Airport Enterprise Fund 3,908 ‘
Deferred Sick Leave Trust & Agency Fund Solid Waste Enterprise Fund 7,604 ;
Defarred Sick Leave Trust & Agency Fund Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund 15,223
Beferred Sick Leave Trust & Agency Fund Alrport Flightline Enterprise Fund 693
Total Recsivables/Payables 39,523,076 f
K. Contributed Capital I
Changes in contributed capital far the year 2002 are as follows:
Enterprise ,
Solid Water and Parking
Airport Waste Sewer Authority
Sources Adrport Flightline Utility Utility Lots Total i

Beginning balance $ 23,241,204 § 272,762 §$ 1,185,660 § 59,453,072 § 10,047,648 § 94,180,346

Contributing sources: {

Capital Project Funds - - - 1,464,007 - 1,464,007
Depreciation on assets
acquired with capital grants {
prior to January 1, 2000 {846,360} - - (389,524 - {1,245,884)

Ending balance

$ 22304844 § 272762 § 1165660 § 60517555 § 10,047,648 § 94,398,469 /

IV. OTHER INFORMATION !

A. Segment Information — Enterprise Funds ‘

The government maintains five entérprise funds that are intended to be self-supporting through user

fees charged for service to the public. These enterprise funds provide airport services, flightline

services, waste disposal and collection, water and sewer, and public parking. Financial segment ‘
information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002 is presented below:
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Solid Water and Parking
Airport Waste Sewer Authority
Airport Flightiine Utility UHility Lots Total
Operating Revenues $ 2483857 § 772171 $ 3815376 § 13,090,703 3 774,679 % 20,936,586
Depreciation Expense 1,403,279 8,950 467,338 3,066,993 237,005 5,183,566
Operating Income (Loss) {667,399) 15,322 339,042 4,562,458 114,289 4,363,712
Net Income {Loss) 2,285,824 9,151 261,585 5,322,985 (103,529} 7,776,116
Operating Transfers In - ~ - - - -
Operating Transfers Qut 59,197 158,770 233,495 213,234 211,694 733,390
Current Capital

Contributions - - - 1,464,007 - 1,464,007
Fixed Asset Additions 3,527,659 22,500 1,032,308 10,427,732 1,077,399 16,087,598
Fixed Asset Deletions 58,350 2,256 146,364 34,318 - 241,288
Net Working Capital 3,579,682 366,567 7,523,115 18,424,317 (571,597} 29,322,084
Total Assels 40,959,019 620,706 16,480,797 109,660,035 8,239,738 175,970,295
Total Equity 40,525,909 556,452 15,650,683 104,889,049 6,913,470 168,535,663

B. Closure and Post Closure Care Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its Bismarck Municipal
Solid Waste Facility when it stops accepling waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and post closure care costs will be
paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City reports a portion of
these closure and post closure care cosis as an operating expense in each period based on landfill
capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $493,760 reported as landfill closure and post
closure care liability at December 31, 2002, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based
on the use of 37 percent of the estimated capacity of the landfill. The City will recognize the remaining
estimated cost of closure and post closure care of $823,032 as the remaining estimated capacity is
filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post closure care in
2002. The City expects to close the existing landfill cell in 2018. Actual costs may be higher due to
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

The City is required by state and federal laws and regulations to determine the method they would
choose o finance the closure and post closure costs. We are required to run an annual financial test
as specified in the N.D.C.C. 33-20-14-07 to insure compliance. The City expects that future inflation
costs will be paid from operating revenue. However, if the funds are inadequate or additional post
closure requirements are determined (due to changes in technology or applicable laws or regulations),
these costs may need to be covered by the sale of general obligation bonds and from future tax
revenue.

C. Cost Sharing Arrangement

Combined Communications Center

The City of Bismarck owns and operates a Combined Communications Center. The Center is
managed by a board, which is comprised of six members. it inclides three members from the City (a
commissioner, the Chief of Police, and the Chief of Fire and Inspections), two members for the County
{a commissioner and the County Sheriff), and one representative from a local ambulance service that is
appointed by a majority of the members of the board. Initially, the City provided 65% and the County
provided 35% of the funding for the Center. The City and Counly approve the annual budget for the
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Center. The percentages for 2002 remain the same as the initial percentage of 35% for the County
and 65% for the City. The employees of the Center are the employees of the City. The Combined
Communications Center is a part of the General Fund.

Assets: Total
Property and equipment $953,987
L ess value of depreciation {596,203)
Net assets $357,784
Total operating expenditures - 2002 $760,883

There is no debt outstanding for the Combined Communications Center. The total value of the assets
is carried in the City's General Fixed Asset Account Group. No depreciation is recorded in the financial
statements,

D. Employee Retirement Systems

The City of Bismarck contributes to three separate pension plans that cover substantially all full -time
employees. They include the City of Bismarck Employees Pension ("City"}, the Bismarck Police
Pension ("Palice”) and the Bismarck Firefighter's Relief Association ("Fire"). All of these plans are
defined benefit pension system. The Firefighter's Relief Assaciation is a separate legal entity and is not
administered by the City. This plan has not been included in the reporting entity and therefore is not
shown in the accompanying financial statements. The City and Police plans are included in the City's
financial reports as Pension Trust Funds. Administrative costs are funded through earnings of the
plans.

Surmmary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting - The City's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the
contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of each plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - Investments are reported at fair market value.

City of Bismarck Emplovees Pension

Plan Description - The City plan is a cost sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system.
Membership in the plan on December 31, 2002 is as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 116
Terminated employees - vested 16
Active employees:
Vested 227
Non-vested 93
Number of participating employers: 2

Employees may be eligible for early, normal or disability retirement, as well as death benefits. Normal
retirement age for full benefits is age 62. Employees who retire at or after age 62 with 5 years of
credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount
equal to one and three-quarters percent of the average of the member's highest 36 months base salary
for each full and fractional year of contributing service. Employees with 5 years of credited service may
retire at an eariier age and receive a reduced retirement benefit.
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If an employee leaves employment or dies, the employee's contributions, plus the actual amount
earned, are refunded to the employee or their beneficiary.

Benefit provisions are established under the authority of the City Commission.
Contributions - Participating employees contribute to the plan at a rate of 5% of salary and the

emplovers contribute at a rate determined by local statute. The contribution rates are established by
tocal ordinance, and the employer contribution rate set by the City Commission.

Contributions:
Year Amouq&_‘
2002 $409,855
2001 375,227
2000 830,187

The annual pension cost equals the employer contributions for the years ending December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000. The percentage funded was 100% for each year. NPOQ for the end of each year was
Zero.

Reserves - The fund balance at December 31, 2002 is $20,156,250 and the entire amount is reserved
for employee pension benefiis.

City of Bismarck Police Pension Plan

Plan Description - The Police pian is a single employer public employee retirement system.

Membership in the plan on December 31, 2002 is as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 35
Terminated employees - vested 3
Active employees:
Vested 72
Non-vested 35
Number of participating employers: i

The plan provides retirement benefits. All benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Employees
who retire at or after age 55 with 5 years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit,
payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to two percent of their final average salary, for each full
and fractional year of contributing service. Final average salary is the employees' average salary,
excluding overtime and longevity pay, over the last 36-month period of credited service. Employees
with 5 years of credited service may retire at an earlier age and\receive a reduced retirement benefit.

Any employee who leaves shall be entitled to a refund of all contributions made by them plus the actual
amount earned. A member who retires as a result of length of service shall be eligible for pension.

The surviving spouse, as long as unmarried, shall receive a sum equal {o two-thirds of the amount the
employee would have received.

Benefit provision is established under the authority of the City Commission.
Contributions - Participating employees contribute to the plan at a rate of 6% of salary and the

employers contribute at a rate determined by local statute. The contribution rates are established by
local ordinance and the employer contribution rate set by the City Commission.
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Contributions:

Year Amount

2002 $ 203,630
2001 109,231
2000 424,103

The annual pension cost equals the employer confributions for the years ending December 31, 2002,
2001, and 2000. The percentage funded was 99% for 2002 and 100% for 2001 and 2000. NPO for the
end of each year was zero.

Reserves - The fund balance at December 31, 2002 is $9,999, 946 and the entire amount is reserved
for employee pension benefits.

Bismarck Firefighter's Relief Association Plan

Plan Description - The Fire plan is a single employer public employee retirement system govermned by
Section 18-11 of the North Dakota State Century Code. The Association is organized, operated, and
maintained in accordance with its own articles of incorporation and by-laws. Al full-time firefighters are
eligible members, however participation is voluntary.

Membership in the plan on Decernber 31, 2002 is not available at this time. Membership in the plan on
December 31, 1999 is as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 30
Terminated employees - vested 2
Active employees:
Vested 39
Non-vested 24

Employees who retire at or after age 50, with at least 10 years of credited service, are eligible to a
retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 20 o 60 percent of a first class firefighter's salary.
The plan also provides for death and disability benefits.

Benefit provisions and changes to benefit formulas are established under the authority of the plans
Board of Directors.

Contributions - Participating employees contribute to the plan at a rate of 7% of the First Class

Firefighter's salary, as set annually by the Board of Directors. In addition, 50% of the amount received

from the State for the assessed revenue from the 1.125% of the premiums assessed to insurance

companies for fire and multi-perial insurance on property within the City is contributed to the plan.
Contributions:

Year Amount

2002 $ 384,617
2001 396,077
2000 315,925

The annual pension cost equals the employer contributions for the years ending December 31, 2000,
1998, and 1998. The percentage funded was 100% for each year. NPO for the end of each year was
Zero.

Compilete financial and pension Iinformation on the Bismarck Firefighter's Relief Association can be
obtained by contacting:
Flrefighter's Relief Association
PO Box 5503
Bismarck, North Dakota 58508-5503.
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Schedule of Funding Progress

City of Bismarck Emplovees Pension (In Thousand of Dollars)

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Acturarial UAAL as a
Valuation  Actuarial  Accrued  Accrued Annual Percentage
Date Value of  Liability Liability Funded Covered of Annual
Jan1 Plan Assels  (AAL) {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
1996 § 18,995 $16,254 § (2,741) 116.9% $8,462 {(32.4) %
1997 21,504 17,688 (3,816) 121.6% 8,759 (43.6) %
1998 24,849 19,148 (5,701) 129.8% 8,801 (64.0) %
1999 27,868 20,190 (7,678) 138.0% 9,110 (84.3) %
2000 30,820 21,632 (9,297) 143.0% 9,685 (96.0) %
2001 31,609 23,299 (8,310) 135.7% 10,508 {79.1) %
2002 31,269 25528 (5,741) 1225% 11,114 (51.7) %
2003 28,899 27,538 {1,361) 104.9% 11,807 (11.5) %
City of Bismarck Police Pension (In Thousand of Dollars)
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial  Acturarial UAAL as a
Valuation  Actuarial  Accrued  Accrued Annual Percentage
Date Value of Liability  Liability Funded Covered of Annual
Jan 1 Plan Assets  (AAL) {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
1996  § 8674 % 7,165 $ (1,509) 121.1% $2,903 {52.0) %
1997 8,921 7,833 {1,988) 125.1% 3,055 (65.1) %
1998 11,555 8,713 {2,842) 1326% 3,139 (90.5) %
1999 13,067 9,536 (3,521) 136.9% 3,234 (108.9) %
2000 14,742 10,402 (4,340) 141.7% 3,396 (127.8) %
2001 15,126 11,581 (3,545) 130.6% 3,723 {95.2) %
2002 14,791 12,521 (2,270) 118.1% 3,882 (58.5) %
2003 13,555 13,697 142 99.0% 3,784 38 %
City of Bismarck Firefighter's Relief Association (In Thousand of Dollars)
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial  Acturarial UAAL as a
Valuation Actuarial Accrued Accrued Annual Percentage
Date Value of  Liability Liasbilily Funded Covered of Annual
Jan1 Plan Assels (AAL) (UAAL) Ratioc Payroll Covered Payroll
1994 § 7,966 § 9,836 1,870 81.0% $1,770 10566 %
1996 9,877 10,959 1,082 Q01% 2,120 510 %
1998 12,707 11,880 (827} 107.0% 2,265 (36.5) %
2000 15,939 13,450 2489 1185% 2472 100.7 %

Bi-annual actuarial valuations are done on the Firefighter's Relief Association.
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City Plan Police Plan Fire Plan

Valuation date ‘ 1112003 1/1/2003 11112000
Actuarial cost method Eniry Age Entry Age Entry Age
Normal Normal Normal
Amortization method Level % of Level % of Level % of
payroll over payroll over payroll over
remaining remaining remaining

amortization  amortization  amortization
period-closed period-closed  period-closed

Remaining amortization period 16 yrs 13 yrs 25 yrs

Valuation Method - Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Projected salary increases 4.00% 4.00% 4.50%
Assumed payment increases 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Paost retirement cost of living adjustments None None 2.25%

The above information on the Firefighter's Relief Association is the latest information available as of the
date of this report.

E. Issued But Non-Effective Pronouncements

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several statements not yet
implemented by the City. The statements that will impact the City are as follows:

No. 34 “Basic Financial Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments;” No. 37 “Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-For
State and Local Governments: Omnibus;” and No. 38, “Certain Financial Statements Note Disclosures”
will be effective for the City based on its revenues, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.

These statements, summarized below, impose new standards for financial reporting. Management has
not yet completed their assessment of these statements, however, it will have a material effect on the
overall financial statement presentation for the City.

For the first time, financial managers will be reguired to share their insights in a management's
discussion and analysis (MD8A) that gives readers an analysis of the government's overall financial
position and results of the previous year's operations.

Financial statements will be presented under a dual perspective — a government-wide perspective
{new) and a fund level perspective. For the first time, the annual report will include government wide
financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the government’s activities, not just
those that cover costs by charging a fee for services, as was previously required. Governments will
report all capital assets, including infrastructure, in a government-wide statement of net assets and will
report depreciation expense, the cost of using up capital assets, in the staterment of activities.
Infrastructure assets will be reported; but may not be required to be depreciated under certain
circumstances. The net assets of a government will be broken down into three categories: invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. A statement of activities will be
presented in at least the same level of detail provided in governmental fund statements; generally,
expenses and program revenues by function. Program expenses will include all direct expenses:
governments that allocate overhead and other indirect expenses to individual programs will show the
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allocation in a separate column. Special and extraordinary items will be reported separately from other
revenues and expenses. This way, users will see if the government's conventional, recurring revenues
and expenses batanced.

Statement No. 34 requires governments to continue to present fund level financial statements with
information about funds. The focus of these fund-based statements has been sharpened, however, by
requiring governments to report information about their most important or major funds (those whose
revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets, or labilities are at least 10 percent of the total for their fund
category or type (governmental or enterprise) and at least 5 percent of the aggregate amount for all
governmental and enterprise funds), including a government’s general fund. Fund-based statements
for governmental activities (generally, those supported by tax revenues) will continue to report the flow
of current financial resources (generally, cash and other assets that can easily be converted to cash.)

To help users understand and assess the relationship between fund-based and government-wide
financial statements, governments will present a summary reconciliation that will show the interplay
between the two types of statements.

The City will continue to provide budgetary comparison information in their annual reports as required
supplementary information. Animportant change, however, is a requirement fo add the government's
original budget to the current comparison of final budget and actual results.

F. Prior Period Adjustment

Retained earnings at the beginning of 2001 for the Parking Lot Authority Enterprise Fund has been
adjusted to correct an error of recording lease proceeds as revenue in 1988. Beginning retained
earnings was reduced by $303,937. The error had no effect on income for 2002

G, Commitments

As of December 31, 2002, the City had commitments on various construction contracts totating
approximately $6,127,835.

The City entered into an agreement to purchase land for the purpose of building a new fire station.
Earnest money of $1,000 was paid during 2002. The balance of $84,000 is payable at closing in
February, 2003.

The Board of the City Commissioners voted to allocate $75,000 each to the Bismarck-Mandan

Convention and Visitor's Bureau and the Fort Lincoln Foundation for the Lewis and Clark Bicentennial
signature event. These payments are to be paid in January 2003.
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Exhibit A-1
CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ 14,577,615 $ 13,596,173
Receivables (Net of Allowances for Uncollectibles):
Taxes:

Property 222,133 171,523
Accountis 1,041,884 869,579
Due from Other Funds:

Library 4,890 18,864

Community Development 9,002 4,017

Bismarck/Mandan Visitors Bureau 1,357 -

Miscellaneous Government Grants - 85,271

TOTAL ASSETS $ 15,856,881 $ 14,745,427
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable $ 595,403 $ 134,875

Deferred Revenue:

Property Taxes 222,133 119,451
Permits 45,582 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 863,118 254,326
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for encumbrances 89,859 -
Unreserved, undesignated 14,903,904 14,491,101
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 14,993,763 14,491,101
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 15,856,881 $ 14,745,427
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DPECEMBER 31, 2002

REVENUES
Taxes:

Property

Cther
Licenses and Permits
intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
investment Income
Rentals
Miscellanecus

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:

Buitlding Construction
Municipal Court
Assessing
Administration and Conmmission
Fiscal and Information Services
Attorney
Human Resources
Common Software
Employee Training
Equipment Reserve
Government Aid Programs
Special Projects
Salary and Benefit Adjustments
Caontingencies
City/County Office Building
One-Time Budgels
Planning

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

PUBLIC SAFETY:

Police

Fire and Inspections

Combined Communication Center

Fire Truck and Equipment
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

Total
2002 Budgetary

Budget Actual Encumbrances Basis
7,928,183 7,388,345 § - § 7,388,345
420,000 604,064 - 604,064
914,725 1,017,477 - 1,017,477
4,503,984 4,556,312 - 4,556,312
2,250,553 3,180,777 - 3,150,777
884,812 925,640 - 925,640
353,800 457,109 - 457,109
135,150 112,394 - 112,394
106,458 91,664 - 91,664
17,497,765 18,303,782 - 18,303,782
150,000 109,740 - 108,740
229,108 212,291 - 212,291
403,397 372,697 - 372,697
372,822 330,991 - 330,991
1,111,432 937,056 - 937,056
206,052 202,271 - 202,271
202,708 199,665 - 199,665
30,000 1,785 - 1,785
30,000 23,681 - 23,681
132,307 84,206 - 84,296
1,346,037 895,181 - 895,181
113,000 107,188 - 107,188
79,102 57,977 - 57,977
24,522 - - -
186,806 148,477 - 148,477
277,145 218,366 - 218,366
858,534 804,680 45,100 849,780
5,752,767 4,706,342 45,100 4,751,442
5,553,043 5,425,086 - 5,425,086
3,854,077 3,834,098 - 3,834,098
837,418 757,098 - 757,098
6,000 5,703 - 5,703
10,250,539 10,021,985 - 10,021,985
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

HIGHWAY AND STREETS:
Engineering
Weed Conirol
Leafy Spurge
Forestry
Forestry-Boulevard Trees
TOTAL HIGHWAY AND STREETS

HEALTH:
ND Health Tracks
Bismarck-Burleigh Public Health
TOTAL HEALTH

CULTURE AND RECREATION:
Civic Center/City Auditorium
Civic Center Promotions
Cable TV Promotions
Centennial Beach
TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION

CAPITAL QUTLAY
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES

QTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:

Special Revenue

Capital Projects

Enterprise

Internal Service

Trust and Agency
Qperating Transfers Qut:

Special Revenue

Capital Projects

Enterprise

Internal Service

Trust and Agency

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

Exhibit A-2

Total
2002 Budgetary
Budget Actual Encumbrances Basis
1,102,754 1,021,901 - 1,021,901
20,952 20,829 - 20,829
20,963 20,815 - 20,915
422,948 410,711 - 410,711
73,814 62,687 - 62,687
1,641,431 1,637,043 - 1,537,043
85,985 68,108 - 68,108
804,327 875,519 - 875,519
990,312 943,627 - 943,627
1,687,284 1,678,791 - 1,678,791
29,400 7,917 - 7.917
189,123 189,123 - 189,123
250 208 - 208
1,906,057 1,876,039 - 1,876,039
2,186,423 1,564,242 44,759 1,600,001
22,727,529 20,649,278 89,859 20,739,137
(5,229,764) (2,345,496) {89,859) {2,435,355)
3,191,071 3,167,732 - 3,167,732
73,132 168,021 - 168,021
257,272 257,567 - 257,567
46,658 189,968 - 189,968
30,326 30,326 - 30,326
{61,191) (63,515) - (63,515)
{882,500) (882,500) - (882,500)
{4,1086) {877) - (877)
(12,978) (18,564) - (18,564)
2,637,684 2,848,158 - 2,848,158
$ (2,582,080 $ 502662 § (89,859) §$ 412,803
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ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Receivables (Net of Allowances
For Uncollectibles):
Taxes
Accounts
Due fram Other Funds
Notes Receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Due to other funds
Deferred Revenue:
Property Taxes
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for Long-Term Receivable
Unreserved, Undesignated
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2001)

Speciat Matel/Liquer

Beficiency/ Social Sales Tax Vision Restaurant
Assumptlion Security Fund Fund Tax

& 877,167 $ 175857 $ 3,707,264 $ 6,028,360 $ 1,242 432

19,529 25,768 - - “

- - 855,480 - 113,074

- - - 250,000 -

§ 896,696 $ 201625 § 4,562,744 $ 6,278,360 $ 1,355,508

kS 3,864 $ 132 $ 6,920 5 - & -

19,529 25,768 - - -

23,393 25,900 6,920 - -

- - - 250,000 -

B73,303 175,725 4,555,824 6,028,380 1,355,508

873,303 175,725 4,555,824 5,278,360 1,355,506

§ 896,696 3 201625 5 4,562,744 3 6,278,380 $ 1,355,506
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Exhlbit B-1

Hotel/ Arena/
Motel £/H Transit Exhibit Totals
Tax Syslem Special Funds Operallons 2002 2001
- 484 633,639 $ 15,535,400 $ 13.744,853
- 6,116 - 82,348 58,321
37,363 - 48,780 1,364,522 932,725
" - 67,621 67,621 -
- - - 250,000 250,000
37,363 6,600 750,040 $ 17,289,891 $ 14,985,889
37,363 484 5,886 3 161,778 $ 24,763
- - 494 095 498,985 18,864
- 6,116 - 82,348 41,697
37,363 6,600 499,981 743,111 85,324
- - - 250,000 250.000
- - 250,059 16,308,780 14,650,575
- - 250,059 16,558,780 14,800,575
37,363 6,600 750,040 $ 17,299,891 $ 14,985,898




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2602
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

Special Motel/Liquor
Deficiency/ Social Sales Tax Vision Restauran!
Assumption Security Fund Fund Tax
REVENUES
Taxes § 223,683 b 884,500 $ 8,324,913 £ - 5 1,204,279
Licenses and Permils - - - - -
Intergovernmental 8,506 25,807 - - -
Charges for Services - - - - -
Fines and Forfeits - - - - -
Investment Income 214,698 8,188 150,491 152,758 31,312
Rentals “ - - - 19,200
Miscelianeous - 286 - 10,098 -
TOTAL REVENUES 444,887 918,781 8,475,404 162,854 1,254,791
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 68,757 988,308 1,113,781 1,069,504 35
Public Safety - - - - -
Highways and Strests “ - - - -
Culture and Recreation - - - - -
Capital Outlay - - 87,320 - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 68,757 988,308 1,201,101 1,069,504 35
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURE 376,130 {69,527) 7,274,303 (906,650} 1,254,756
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Cperating Transfers In;
General Fund - 63,515 - - -
Special Revenue - 2,114 - 7,185,010 -
Debt Service 181,624 - - - -
Capital Projects - 3,174 - - -
Enterprise - 72,973 - - -
Trust and Agency - - - - -
Operating Transfers Out:
General Fund (68,104) - (2,993,863) - (16,686)
Special Revenue - - (7,362,G79) - -
Debt Service (783,613) - (872,699) - (849,385)
Capital Projects (130,000) . (3,700,000) . (175,000
internal Service - - - - -
Trust and Agency - - (300,000} - -
Sales of General Fixed Assels - - - - -
Proceeds of Revenue Bonds - - 3,081,410 - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND USES {800,093} 141,776 (12,147,231} 7,185,010 {1,041,071)
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES {423,963} 72,249 (4,872,928} 6,278,360 213,685
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 1,297,266 403,476 9,428,752 - 1,141,821
FUND BALANCES - ENDING b 873,303 3 175,725 $ 4,555,824 % §,278,360 % 1,355,508
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Exhibit B-2

Hotel/ Police Arena/
Motel £/H Transit Department Exhibit Roads and Totals
Tax System Special Funds Operations Streels Library 2002 2001
3 380,552 $ 196,906 $ - & - $ - 894,471 $ 12,219,304 $ 11,062,889
- - 4,175 - - - 4175 14,827
- 668,604 121,114 - 2,268,931 250,855 3,341,817 3,777,268
- - - 140,668 1,079,053 45,397 1,274,138 1,214,661
- - 5,875 62,556 - 40,514 108,945 58,847
- 410 9,454 24,817 52,968 13,017 658,113 847,312
- - B 328,409 36,591 2,862 387,062 279,637
- - 400 964 9,641 4,059 25,446 26,664
390,552 865,920 141,018 566,434 3,447,184 1,351,175 18,019,000 17,282,105
390,582 868,053 - - - - 4,488,990 2,188,062
- - 152,820 - - - 152,820 149,631
- - - - 3,128,450 - 3,128,450 3,058,757
B - - 64,577 - 1,277,065 1,341,642 1,186,668
- - 25,577 - 523,365 38,619 675,281 510,606
390,552 868,053 178,397 64,577 3,661,815 1,316,084 9,797,183 7,092,724
- (2.133) (37,379) 501,857 (204,631} 35,091 §,221,817 10,189,381
- - - - - - 63,515 Az 744
- - - - 177,069 - 7,364,193 209,555
- - - - - - 181,824 293,831
- - - - - - 3,174 8,669
- - - - 169,534 - 232,507 -
- - ~ 1,035,364 - - 1,035,364 -
. . - (19,979) (53,013) {16,087) (3,167,732) {3,008,357)
- - (2,114) - - - (7,364,183) (208,555)
- - - - - - {2,505,697) {2,471,156)
- - - (1,267,183) - - (5,272,183) {2,072,087)
- - (54) - - - {54) (113)
- - (2,540) - - - (302,540} {1,562}
- - - - 85,000 - 85,000 -
~ - - - - - 3,081,410 -
- - {4,708) (251,708) 368,590 {16,087} (6,565,612} (7,207,831)
- {2,133) (42,687) 250,058 163,959 19,004 1,656,205 2,981,550
- 2,133 380,279 - 2,328,402 207,446 14,900,575 11,919,025
B - $ - $ 348,192 $ 250,059 $ 2,493,361 226,450 $ 16,556,780 $ 14,800,575




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
SPECIAL DEFICIENCY/ASSUMPTION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

{(WiTH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

REVENUES

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Investment Income
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current;

General Government
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {[JSES)
Operaling Transfers In:

Debt Service
Operating Transfers Out:

General Fund

Debt Service

Capital Projecis

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING

41

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
$ 240939 $ 223683 $ 244,328
6,400 6,506 6,467
124,000 214,698 220,551
371,338 444 BB7 471,346
74,600 68,757 51,982
74,600 68,757 51,982
296,739 376,130 419,364
- 181,624 293,831
{68,104} (68,104} {64,517
(904,110) {783,613) {361,671}
- {130,000) {112,087}
{972,214) {800,093) {244,444)
3 (675475) (423,963) 174,920
1,297,266 1,122,346
$ 873303 3 1,207,266




(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20601)

REVENUES
Taxes

Intergovernmentat
Investment Income

Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General Government

CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Exhibit B-3

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Operating Transfers In:

General Fund

Special Revenue
Capital Projecis

Enterprise

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES  §

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual

$ 1,021,387 % 884,500 $ 699,872
21,195 25,807 21,128
2,800 8,188 20,168

- 286 489
1,045,482 918,781 741,657
1,000,642 988,308 923,525
1,000,642 088,308 923,525
44,840 (69,627) (181,868)
37,000 63,515 33,780

- 2,114 1,698

- 3,174 8,869

- 72,873 -

37,000 141,776 44,347
81,840 72,249 (137.521)
103,476 240,997

$ 175,725 $ 103,476
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
SALES TAX FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
Taxes $ 7,652320 $ 8,324,913 $ 7.837,357
intergovernmental - - 166,534
Investment Income 75000 150,41 384,632
TOTAL REVENUES 7,727,320 8,475,404 8,397,423
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1,870,850 1,113,781 277,506
Capital Cutlay 125,000 87,320 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,985,850 1,201,101 277 506
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 5,731,470 7,274,303 8,119,917
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers Out:
General Fund (2,993,863) (2,993,863) {2,847,028)
Special Revenues (348,192) (7,362,079) {207,857)
Debt Service (1,361,814) (872,699) {1,301,418)
Capitat Projects (3,300,000) (3,700,000) {1,500,000)
Trust and Agency (750,000} (300,000} -
Proceeds of Revenue Bonds - 3,081,410 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (8,754,869) (12,147,231) (5,856,300)
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES $ (3,023,399) (4,872,928} 2,263,617
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 9,428,752 7,165,135
FUND BALANCES - ENDING § 4,855824 $ 9,428,752
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

VISION FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

Exhibit B-3

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
Invesiment iIncome $ 120,000 152,758 -
Miscellaneous - 10,096 -
TOTAL REVENUES 120,000 162,854 -
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1,500,000 1,069,504 ~
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,500,000 1,069,504 -
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES {1,380,000) {906,650) -
OTHER FINANCGING SOURCES
Operating Transfers In;
Special Revenue - 7,185,010 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - 7,185,010 -
EXCESS OF REVENUES QVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND QTHER FINANCING SOURCES $§ {1,380,000) 6,278,360 -
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING - -
FUND BALANCES - ENDING 6,278,360 -
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
MOTEL, LIQUOR, RESTAURANT TAX FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
Taxaes $ 1,100,000 $ 1,204,278 § 1,127,264
Investment Income 29,000 31,312 68,317
Rentals - 19,200 19,200
TOTAL REVENUES 1,128,000 1,254,791 1,214,781
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 100 35 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 100 36 -
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 1,128,900 1,254 756 1,214,781
OTHER FINANCING USES
Operating Transfers Out:
General Fund (20,024} {16,686} (37,268)
Debt Service {849,385) (849,385) {808,070)
Capital Projects {175,000) {175,000) {460,000)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (1,044,409} {1,041,071) (1,305,336}
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES $ 84,481 213,685 {90,555}
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 1,141,821 1,232,376
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 1,355,506 $ 1,141,821
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CiTY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

MOTEL, HOTEL TAX FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

REVENUES
Taxes
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING

Exhibit 8-3

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
$ 380,000 380,552 -
380,000 380,552 -
342,000 390,552 -
342,000 380,552 -
38,000 - -
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
E/H TRANSIT SYSTEM FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
Taxes $ 210910 % 186,908 g 190,894
intergovernmental 1,148,690 668,604 749,600
Investment Income - 410 1,122
TOTAL REVENUES 1,358,600 865,920 941,618
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1,359,600 868,053 936,049
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,359,600 868,053 936,049
REVENUES OVER {UNDER) EXPENDITURES 5 - (2,133) 5,567
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 2,133 (3,434)
FUND BALANCES - ENDING 3 - 3 2,133
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
POLICE DEPARTMENT SPECIAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001}

Exhibit B-3
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2002 2001
Budget Actuat Actual
REVENUES
Licenses and Permits $ 4,000 3 4,175 $ 14,827
intergovernmental 130,000 121,114 380,774
Fines and Forfeils 1,000 5875 6,882
Investment Income 17.500 8,454 20,276
Miscellaneous - 400 -
TOTAL REVENUES 152,500 141,018 422,758
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Public Safety 261,594 152,820 149,631
Capitai Qutlay 30,000 25577 53,791
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 291,594 178,367 203,422
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {139,094) (37,379) 219,337
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Operating Transfers In:
Generat Fund - - 8,964
Operating Transfers Out:
General Fund - - (4,199)
Special Revenue {2,137} {2,114} (1,698)
Infernal Service {179} {54) (113)
Trust and Agency {B,842) {2,540} {1,562)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {11,158) {4,708) 1,392
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER {UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES 3  (150,252) (42,087} 220,729
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 390,279 168,550
FUND BALANCES - ENDING 3 348,192 $ 380,279




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
ARENA/EXHIBIT OPERATIONS FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

2002 2001
Budget Aclual Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Services 3 67,500 $ 149,688
Fines and Forfeits - 62,556
investment Income 16,800 24 817
Rentals 210,000 328,409
Miscellaneous - 964
TOTAL REVENUES 294,300 566,434
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culiure and Recreation 110,750 64,577
Capital Cutlay 71,500 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 182,250 64,577
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 112,050 501,857
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:
Trust and Agency - 1,035,364
Operating Transfers Qut;
General Fund (91,202) {19,979}
Capitai Projects (1.098,500) (1,267,183)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1,189,792) (251,798)
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES $ (1,077,742) 250,059
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING -
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 248,320
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
ROADS AND STREETS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

Exhibit B-3

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
Intergovernmental § 2,058,718 $ 2,268,931 $ 2,208,188
Charges for Services 1,057 250 1,079,053 1,194,899
Investment Income 85,000 52,968 98,112
Rentails 75,036 36,691 260,413
Miscellaneous 322,180 9,641 11,575
TOTAL REVENUES 3,598,184 3,447 184 3,773,188
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Highway and Sireets 3,508,228 3,128,450 3,656,757
Capital Outlay 480,600 523,365 456,818
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,888,228 3,651,815 3,513,672
REVENUES OVER (UNDER} EXPENDITURES {400,044) (204,631) 259,616
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Cperating Transfers In;
Special Revenue 349,182 177,069 207 BRY
Enterprise 285,900 159,534 -
Operating Transfers Out:
General Fund (53,067) (53,013) (40,547)
Speciat Revenue (136,000) - .
Enterprise (16,000) - -
Sales of General Fixed Assets - 85,000 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) 430,025 368,590 167,310
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES QVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES $ 29,981 163,959 426,926
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 2,329,402 1,902,476
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 2,493,361 $ 2,329,402
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
LIBRARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001}

2002 2001
Budget Actuat Actual

REVENUES
Taxes $ 1,063,874 5 994 471 % 963,174
intergovernmental 216,704 250,855 245,576
Charges for Services 36,000 45,397 18,762
Fines and Forfeils 53,000 40,514 51,865
Investment Income 16,000 13,017 24,234
Rentals - 2,862 24
Misceilaneous 1,000 4,059 14,600

TOTAL REVENUES 1,386,578 1,351,175 1,319,335
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Culture and Recreation 1,310,806 1,277,065 1,186,666

Capital Qutlay 47,700 39,019 -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,358,606 1,316,084 1,186,668

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 27,972 35,091 132,667
OTHER FINANCING USES
Operating Transfers Out:
General Fund (31,000) {16,087) {14,800)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (31,000) {16,087) {14,800}
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING
USES $ (3,028) 19,004 117,867

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 207,446 89,578

FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 226450 $ 207,446
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
TOTALS FOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEGCEMBER 31, 2002

{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

Exhibit B-3

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actuai

REVENUES
Taxes $ 11,669,430 $ 12,219,304 $ 11,062,889
Licenses and Permits 4,000 4,175 14,827
Intergovernmental 3,681,707 3,341,817 3,777,268
Charges for Services 1,180,750 1,274,138 1,214,661
Fines and Forfeils 54,000 108,945 58,847
Investment Income 486,200 658,113 847 312
Rentals 285,036 387,062 279,637
Miscellaneous 323,180 25,446 26,664

TOTAL REVENUES 17,564,303 18,018,000 17,282,105
EXPENDITURES
Current;

Generai Government 6,147,792 4,498,990 2,188,062
Public Safety 261,594 152,820 149,631
Highways and Streets 3,508,228 3,128,450 3,056,757

Culture and Recreation 1,421,656 1,341,642 1,186,668

Capital Outlay 764,200 675,281 510,606
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,103,470 9,797,183 7,082,724
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 5,460,833 8,221,817 10,189,381
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:
General Fund 37,000 63,515 42,744
Special Revenue 348,192 7,364,193 209,555
Debt Service - 181,624 293,831
Capital Projects - 3,174 8,869
Enterprise 285,900 232,507 -
Trust and Agency - 1,035,364 -
Operating Transfers Out:
General Fund {3,257,350) (3,167,732) (3,008,357)
Special Revenue (487,329) (7,364,193} {209,555)
Debt Service (3,115,309) (2,505,697) (2,471,1586)
Capital Projects (4,573,500) (6,272,183) (2,072,087)
Enterprise {16,000) - -
internal Service (179) (54) {113}
Trust and Agency (758,842) (302,540) -
Sales of General Fixed Assels - 85,000 -
Proceeds of Revenue Bonds - 3,081,410 {1,562}
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) {11,536,417) (6,565,612} (7,207,831)
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES $ (6,075,584) 1,656,205 2,981,550
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 14,900,575 11,919,025
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 16,556,780 § 14,800,575
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2002
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2001)

Sales Tax Highway Motel, Liguor,
Revenue Construction Restaurant
Bonds Bond Fund Bonds
ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ - $ 18,474 $ 964,551
Cash with Escrow Agent - - -
Taxes Receivable - 5,000 -
Special Assessments Receivable - - -
Due from Other Funds - - -
Due from Other Governments - . -
TOTAL ASSETS 3 - $ 23474 $ 964,551
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 3 - $ - $ -
Deferred Revenue:
Property Taxes - 5,000 -
Water and Sewer Utility - - -
Park District - - -
Special Assessments - - -
TOTAL DEFERRED REVENUE - 5,000 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 5,000 -
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for Refunding Bonds - - -
Unreserved, Undesignated - 18,474 964,551
TOTAL FUND BALANCES - 18,474 964,551

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 3 - $ 23474 $ 964,551

83




Exhibit C-1

Street Parking Totals

Sewermains  Watermains Sidewalks  Improvements Lots 2002 2001
% - § 309,111 $ 673,489 $ 1,558,326 $ 77,389 $ 3,601,340 $ 6,993,502
- - - 1,939,798 - 1,939,798 4,794,154
- - - - - 5,000 9,628
80,908 15,390 16,338 146,281 - 258,917 193,898
442,396 942,561 229,723 6,045,804 - 7,660,484 5,013,451
35,060 28,619 24,523 215,415 437,486 741,103 932,520
$ 558,364 % 1,295681 $ 944,073 $ 9,005,624 $ 514,875 $ 14,206,642 $ 17,937,153
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - % - $ 56,374
- - - - - 5,000 6,806
- 696,337 - - - 696,337 758,774
80,808 28,619 24,523 146,281 437,486 717,817 932,520
35,080 15,390 16,338 215415 - 282,203 175,539
115,968 740,346 40,861 361,696 437,486 1,701,367 1,873,639
115,968 740,346 40,861 361,696 437,486 1,701,357 1,930,013
- - - 1,939,798 - 1,939,798 4,794,154
442,396 555,335 903,212 7,604,130 77,389 10,565,487 11,212,986
442 396 555,335 903,212 9,543,928 77,389 12,505,285 16,007,140
$ 558,364 $ 1,205,681 $ 944,073 $ 9,905,624 % 514,875 $ 14,206,642 $ 17,937,153
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

Sales Tax Highway Motel, Liquor
Revenue Consiruction Restaurant
Bonds Bond Fund Bonds
REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ 25,506 g -
Special Assessments - - -
Intergovernmental - 744 -
Investment incorne 4,655 2,582 29,395
TOTAL REVENUES 4,655 28,922 29,385
EXPENDITURES
Lebt Service:
Principal 1,295,360 285,000 440,000
Interest 45,674 10,328 409,385
Fiscal Charges - - 734
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,341,034 295,328 850,119
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {1,336,379) {266,406) (820,724)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:
Special Revenue 872,609 - 849,385
Capital Projects - - -
Enterprise - - -
Operating Transfers Out:
Special Revenue - - -
Capital Projects - - -
Trust and Agency - - -
Proceeds of Refunding Bonds - - -
Payment of Refunding Bonds - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 872,699 - 849,385

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND

OTHER FINANCING USES (463,680) (266,406) 28,661
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 463,680 284,880 935,890
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ - $ 18,474 $ 964,551
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Exhibit C-2

Street Parking Totals

Sewermains  Watermains Sidewalks Improvements Lots 2002 2001
$ - $ - $ - § - $ - $ 25,596 5 347,262
503,217 442,894 629,664 3,270,145 114,813 4,960,733 5,062,951
- - - - - 744 10,495
- - - 107 128,644 2,169 167,552 416,193
503,217 442 894 629,771 3,398,789 116,982 5,154,625 5,836,901
277,787 170,485 480,000 2,844,272 62,456 5,855,360 5,380,065
178,209 48,448 133,366 1,167,217 17,889 2,000,514 2,212,341
6,883 2,054 11,242 73,097 - 94,010 137,670
462,879 220,985 624,608 4,074,586 80,345 7,849,884 7,730,076
40,338 221,809 5,163 (675,797) 36,637 (2,795,259) {1,893,175)
- - - 783,613 - 2,505,697 2,471,156
- - - 17,409 - 17,409 805,174
- - - - - - 26,874
- . {130,048) (49,600) (1,076) (181,624) (293,831)
- - - (213,077) - (213,077) (397,658)
- - - - - - (24,578)
2,758 495 - 1,986,746 - 1,889,999 6,090,880
- - - {4,825,000) - {4,825,000) {1,050,000)
2,758 495 {130,948) {(2,299,909) (1,076) {706,596) 7,628,017
43,096 222,404 (125,785) (2,975,7086) 35,561 (3,501,855) 5,734,842
399,300 332,831 1,028,997 12,519,634 41,828 16,007,140 10,272,298
$ 442,396 $ 555,335 $ 903,212 $ 9,543,928 § 77,389 $ 12,505,285 % 16,007,140
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ASSETS

Cash and investmentis
Receivables {Net of Aliowances
for Uncollectibles):
Taxes
Accounts
Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Governments
Cash - Restricted

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Customer Deposils
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for advances o other funds
Unreserved, Undesignated
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2002
{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2001)

Civic Center

Tax Community Building Building Highway
Increment Development improvemenis Construction  Construction
5 4,658,389 $ - § 2,705,138 % - § 1,899,085
42,381 - - - -
- 72,368 - - 40,779
494,005 - - - .
1,048,844 - - - -
$ 6243709 § 72368 § 2705138 % - % 1,840,764
3 - % 63366 § 231069 § 49341 & 269,454
- - 42,083 - 246,804
- 9,002 - 67,621 -
42,381 - - - -
42,381 72,368 273,152 116,962 516,258
1,048,844 - - . .
5,152,484 - 2,431,986 {116,962} 1,424,508
6,201,328 - 2,431,986 {116,962} 1,424,608
$ 6,243,709 % 72,368 $ 2,705,138 % - % 1,940,764
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Exhibit D-1

Bismarck/
Street Parking Mandan
Sewermains  Walermains Sidewalks  Improvements Lots Visitors Riverfront Totals

Construction  Construction  Construction  Construction  Construction Center Enhancement 2002 2001
$ - % - 3 - % - 3 - & - % 99,818 $ 9,363,328 § 7,270,838
- - - - - - - 42,381 26,430
330,958 - - - - - - 444 105 151,890
- - - - - - - 494,085 -
- - - - E 1,357 - 1,357 4,617
- - 773,988 - “ “ - 773,988 796,162
- - - - - - - 1,048,844 -
$ 330,858 & - $ 773988 & - 8 - $ 1,357 $ 99816 §12,168,098  § 8,249,827
$§ 212935 8 - $ 167057 § 276416 -8 - 8 - $ 1,269,638 § 560665
52,428 4,040 - 44 - - - 345,399 -
651,751 246,224 228,723 6,045,804 - 1,357 - 7,251,482 4,343,964
- - - - - - - 42,381 26,282
- - 773,988 - - - - 773,988 796,152
917,114 250,264 1,170,768 6,322,264 - 1,357 - 9,682,888 5,727,083
- - - - - - - 1,436,366 -
(586,156) {250,264) (396,780} (6,322,284} - - 99,816 1,436,366 2,522,764
(586,156) (250,264) (396,780} (6,322,264) - - 99,816 2,485,210 2,622,764
$ 3300958 3 - $ 773988 § - & - $ 1,357 3 99,816 $ 12,168,088 $ 8,249,827

58



CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001}

REVENUES
Taxes
Special Assessments
Intergovernmental
Investment Income
Rentals
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital Qutiay;
Public Works
Special Assessments
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:
General Fund
Special Revenue
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Enterprise
Operating Transfers Qut:
General Fund
Special Revenue
Bebt Service
Capital Projects
Trust and Agency
tnternal Service
Enterprise
Special Assessment Bond Proceeds
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND

OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - ENDING

Civic Center
Tax Community Building Building Highway

Increment Development Improvements  Construgtion Construction
$1,114884 § - & - b3 - $ -
- 041,697 - - 40,779

144,332 - 38,401 7,453 25972

- - - 100,600 -
1,259,316 841,697 38,401 107,453 66,751
29,739 $81,938 688,915 2,095,707 1,914,260
29,739 881,938 688,915 2,085,707 1,814,260
1,220,577 59,758 {650,514} {1,988,254) (1,847,508)
- - 882,500 - -

- - 2,200,000 1,442,183 1,630,000

- - - - 52,252

211,684 - - - -
(41,532) (55,014) - - .

- (3,174) - - -

- {1,539) - - -

- {31} - - -

170,162 {59,758} 3,082,500 1,442,183 1,682,252
1,399,739 - 2,431,986 {546,071) (165,257)
4,801,588 - - 429,108 1,588,763
$ 6201328 % - § 2,431,986 $ (116,962) $ 1,424,506
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Exhibit D-2

Street Parking Bismarclk/Mdn
Sewermains Watermains Sidewalks Improvements Lots Visitors Riverfront Totals

Construction  Construction  Construction  Construction  Construction Center Enhancement 2002 2001
% - 8 « 5 - % - 8 - 8 - 8 - $ 1,114884 § 1,057,885
- 871 8,774 25 - - - 9,670 842,710
330,958 - - 656,314 - - - 1,969,748 5,225,863
1,324 - 15 - - - - 217,497 268,654
- - - - - - - 100,000 608
- . - 23,779 - - - 23,778 40,441
332,282 871 8,78% 680,118 - - - 3,435,678 7,436,251
- - - - - 3,416 - 5,613,978 2,457,900
1,365,143 89,153 501,896 5,305,872 - - - 7,262,064 §,484,774
1,365,143 89,153 501,896 5,305,872 - 3416 - 12,876,040 11,942,674
(1,032,861) {88,282) (493,107) {4,625,754) - (3.416) - {9,440,362) (4,506,423)
- - - - - - - 882,500 -
- - - - - - - 5,272,183 2,072,087
- - - 160,825 - - - 160,825 397,658
- - - - - - - 52,252 20,247
- - - - - - - 211,694 472,707
- - - - (71,475) - - (168,021) {66,701)
- - - - - . . (3,174) (8,869)
- - - (17,400) - . . (17,409) (805,174)
- - - - - - - - {20,247)
- - - - - - - (1,639) (3,571)
- - - - - - - {31} {140)
- - - - - - - - (5,976}
316,753 119,204 558,420 2,019,151 - - - 3,013,528 5,685,439
316,753 119,204 558,420 2,162,567 (71,475) - - 9,402,808 7,737,480
{716,108) 30,822 65,313 (2,463,187) (71,475} (3,416) - {37,554} 3,231,037
129,952 (281,186) {462,093) (3,859,077) 71,475 3,418 89,816 2,522,764 {708,273)
$ (586,156) $ (250,264) § (386,780) $ (6322,284) § - § - % 99,816 $ 2485210 § 2522764
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2002

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2001)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowances
or Uncollectibles)
Special Assessments
Bue from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid Insurance
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Cash and Investments:
Customer Deposits
Fixed assets held for resale
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS
Land
Buildings and System
Accumulated Depreciation-Buildings and System
Improvements Other than Buildings
Accumulated Depreciation-improvements Other than Building
Machinery and Equiprnent
Accumulated Depreciation-Machinery and Equipment
Construction in Progress

FIXED ASSETS (NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION)

TOTAL ASSETS
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Airport

Airport Flightline
$ 3,137,801 $ 317412
822,175 64,346
- 21,227
9,011 796
3,968,987 403,781
3,801,177 -
3,610,111 -
(2,143,730} -
45,252 800 233,984
{(16,963,170) (40,429)
818,489 81,456
(695,239) (68,086)
3,309,584 -
36,990,032 216,925
$ 40,959,019 $ 620,706




Exhibit E-1
(Continued on next page)

Water & Parking
Solid Waste Sewer Authority Totals

Utility Utility Lots 2002 2001
$ 7587612 $ 19,375,693 $ 538,951 $ 30,957,469 $ 33,294,070
117,410 301,462 - 1,305,393 564,639
- 28,254 - 28,254 25,990
- 209,355 - 209,355 -
- 46,115 - 67,342 44,918
1,013 13,303 - 24,123 24,220
7,708,035 19,974,182 538,951 32,591,936 33,853,837
- 3,007,131 - 3,007,131 2,723,303
- 20,347 - 20,347 20,347
- 3,027,478 - 3,027,478 2,743,650
892,889 1,851,203 1,203,152 7,748,421 7,765,611
3,857,701 41,689,309 10,206,325 59,363,446 51,475,065
(471,681) {10,380,130) (3,747.,200) (16,742,741) {15,204,886)
4,018,799 74,717,096 1,049,197 125,271,876 122,796,613
(1,645,071) (24,842,258) (1,010,687) (44,401,615) (41,626,703)
4,254,268 4,757,271 36,813 9,948,297 9,692,341
(2,222,143) (3,136,958) {36,813) (6,149,239) (5,747,757
- 2,002,842 - 5,312,436 -
8,784,762 86,658,375 7,700,787 140,350,881 129,250,184
$ 16,490,797 $ 109,660,035 $ 8,239,738 $ 175,970,295 $ 165,947,671




CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2002
{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2001)

Airport
Airport Flightline
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 225,678 $ 38,521
Retainage Payable 159,719 -
Lease Payable - -
Due to Other Funds 3,908 693
Deferred Revenue - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 389,305 37,214

Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets:
Customer Deposits Payable - -

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Advances from other funds -
Compensated Absences 43,805 27,040
L.ease Payable - -
Accrued Closure/Post Closure Costs - -

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 43,805 27,040
TOTAL LIABILITIES 433,110 64,254
Fund Equity

Contributed Capital:
State Government 1,199,799 -
Federal Government 19,860,647 -
Developers - -
Intergovernmental 1,334,398 272,762
TOTAL CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 22,394,844 272,762

Retained Earnings (Deficit)

Unreserved 18,131,065 283,690
TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS 18,131,065 283,690

TOTAL EQUITY 40,525,909 556,452

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 40,959,019 $ 620,706
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Exhibit E-1

{Continued from previous page)

Water & Parking
Solid Waste Sewer Authority Totals
Utility Utility Lots 2002 2001
$ 175,316 541,947 $ 16,399 995,861 1,858,154
- 268,104 - 427,823 -
- - 45,305 45,305 69,817
7,604 711,560 . 723,765 813,627
- 28,254 - 28,254 48,617
182,920 1,549,865 61,704 2,221,008 2,780,215
- 3,040,616 - 3,040,616 2,723,302
- - 1,048,844 1,048,844 -
163,434 180,505 - 414,784 385,131
- - 215,720 215,720 350,378
493,760 - - 493,760 394,206
657,194 180,505 1,264,564 2,173,108 1,138,715
840,114 4,770,986 1,326,268 7,434,732 6,652,232
- - - 1,199,799 1,199,799
624,970 13,272,931 - 33,758,548 36,004,432
- 24,269 - 24,269 24,269
540,690 47,220,355 10,047,648 59,415,853 57,951,846
1,165,660 60,517,555 10,047,648 94,398,469 94,180,346
14,485,023 44,371,494 (3,134,178) 74,137,094 65,115,093
14,485,023 44,371,494 (3,134,178) 74,137,094 65,115,093
15,650,683 104,889,049 6,913,470 168,535,563 169,295,439
$ 16,490,797 $ 109,660,035 $ 8,239,738 $ 175,970,295 $ 165,947,671
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

Airport
Airport Flightline
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services:
Sales of Gas and Qil $ - 617,062
Sales of Parts and Supplies - -
Water Sales - -
Sanitation Fees - -
Utilitles and Miscellaneous Sales 26,918 44
Landing Fees and Airport Services 1,200,637 08,646
Rentals 1,266,102 56,419
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 2,483,657 772,171
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services 1,211,682 476,610
Administration 536,195 271,289
Depreciation 1,403,279 8,950
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,151,056 756,849
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (667,399) 15,322
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Intergovernmental 2,934,823 -
Special Assessments - -
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets {15,034) 308
investment income 82,731 9,291
Interest Expense - -
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES) 3,012,520 9,599
INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 2,345,121 24,921
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN (OUT):
General Fund - -
Capital Projects - -
General Fund {43,758) {11,632}
Special Revenue (9,743} {4,138}
Debt Service - -
Capital Projects - -
Trust and Agency (5.696) -
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS (59,197} {15,770}
NET INCOME ({L.OSS) 2,285,924 9,151
DEPRECIATION ON ASSETS ACQUIRED
WITH CAPITAL GRANTS 846,361 -
RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING as previously reported 14,998,780 274,539
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - -
RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING as restated 14,998,780 274,538
RETAINED EARNINGS - ENDING 3 18,131,065 283,690
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Exhibit E-2

Water & Parking
Solid Waste Sewer Authority Totals
Utility Utility Lots 2002 2001

3 - 116,363 - 3 733,425 $ 700,817
4,877 159,707 - 164,584 113,869

- 8,098,774 “ 8,008,774 7,192,141

3,795,071 4,610,220 - 8,405,291 8,073,363
6,914 59,071 - 92,947 141,886

- - - 1,289,283 1,078,360

8,514 46,568 774,679 2,142,282 2,157,223
3,815,376 13,080,703 774,679 20,936,586 19,455,659
2,869,589 4,749,947 226,545 9,534,283 9,610,537
139,396 711,308 196,840 1,855,025 916,208
467,339 3,066,993 237,605 5,183,566 4,582,667
3,476,334 8,528,245 660,390 16,672,874 15,109,312
339,042 4,562,458 114,289 4,363,712 4,346,347

. 258,987 - 3,193,810 1,663,732

- 280,569 - 280,969 266,972

(48,320} (60,532) - (123,578) 17,441
208,933 534,424 9,181 854,560 1,724,992
{4,575) (40,087) (18,305) {59,967) (60,808}
156,038 973,761 {6,124) 4,145,794 3,612,238
495,080 5,636,219 108,165 8,509,506 7,958,586

- - - - 42,163

- - - 5,976
(37.,794) (164,383) - (257.567) (228,997)
(185,634} {32,993) - {232,508) -
- - - - (26,874)
- - {211,694) {211,694) (472,707)

{10,067} {15,858) - {31,621) -
{233,495) (213,234) (211,694) (733,380) (680,439)
261,585 5,322,985 (103,528} 7,776,116 7,278,147

- 399,524 - 1,245,885 1,276,078
14,223,438 38,648,985 {3,030,649) 65,116,083 56,905,452
. . - . (344,584)
14,223,438 38,648,985 {3,030,649) 65,115,093 56,560,868
5 14,485,023 44,371,494 (3,134,178} 3 74,137,004 3 65,115,003
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKQTA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FL.OWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received From Customers and Users
Cash Paid to Suppliers
Cash Paid to Employees
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmentat Revenue
Transfers From Other Funds
Transfers {to) Other Funds
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Lease Payment
Interest Paid
Proceeds from advance
Froceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Construction
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income o
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities;
Depreciation Expense
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Funds
(increase) Decrease in Inventories
(increase) Decrease in Prepaid ltems
increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
increase {Decrease) in Retainage Payable
increase {Decrease) in Due to Other Funds
Increase {Decrease} in Compensated Absences Payable
Increase {Decrease) in Closure/Post Closure Costs
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCE ACTIVITIES:
Contributions of fixed assets from government

Constiuction of Fixed Assets Contributed
Through Capital Project Funds
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Airport
Airport Flightline

$ 1,801,232 3 759,989
(1,094,353} (494,585)
{509,418) (216,379}

187,461 49,025
2,834,823 -
(59,197) {15,770)
2,875,626 (15,770}

- 910
(9,800) (22,500)

(3,517,859) -
(3,527 659) {21,590)

92,731 9,201

892,731 9,291

{361,841} 20,956

3,498 642 296,456

3,137,801 317,412

{667,399) 15,322

1,403,279 8,850
(682,425) (12,182)

- 2,874

1,498 780

{17,079) 31,754

159,719 -

(3,807} (692)

3,775 2,219

864,860 33,703

3 197,461 $ 49,025

$ -3 -

$ - 3 -




Exhibit E-3

Water & Parking
Solid Waste Sewer Authority Totals
Utility Utility Lols 2002 2001
% 3,800,485 $ 12,847,828 $ 774 679 $ 19,884,213 20,885,702
(1,382,085) {4,613,144) {406,986) (7,991,153} (6,861,066)
(1,364,675) 1,725,135} - {3,815,807) {3,556,690)
1,053,725 6,500,549 367,693 8,177,453 10,467,946
- 258,987 - 3,193,810 1,663,732
- - - - 48,139
{233,495) (213,234) (211,694) (733,380) {728,578)
{233,495} 45,753 (211,694) 2,460,420 983,203
{125,258} - (42,912} (168,170) {125,258)
- {40,087) {15,305) (55,392) (43,328)
- “ 1,048,844 1,048,844 -
1,452 (33,087) - (30,725) 17,441
(479,623) (164,531) - (676,454) (277,516)
(552,685) (8,799,194) (1,077,399} {13,947,137) (11,338,275)
(1,156,114) (9,036,899) {86,772} {13,828,034) (11,766,936)
208,933 534,424 9,181 854,560 1,724,892
208,933 534,424 9,181 854,560 1,724,992
(126,951) (1,947,173) 78,408 (2,336,601) 1,408,205
7,714,563 21,322 B66 460,543 33,294,070 31,884,775
7,587 612 18,375,693 538,951 30,857,469 33,204,070
339,042 4,562 458 114,289 4,363,712 4,288,130
467,339 3,066,993 237,005 5,183,566 4,582,567
(14,891) (33,520) - (743,018} 282,105
- (209,355) - (209,355) 1,147,938
- (25,298) - {22,424} 54,422
(203} (1,978) - 97 12,376
167,748 (1,061,115} 16,399 (862,293) 125,623
- 268,104 - 427,823 “
(7,603) (77,660} - (89,862) {103,207)
2,739 20,820 - 29,653 {4,928)
99,554 - - 99,554 82,820
714,683 1,847,091 253,404 3,813,741 6,179,816
$ 1,063,725 3 6,509,549 $ 367,603 % 8,177,453 10,467,946
3 - 3 - 3 - $ - 20,012
3 - $ 1,464,007 $ - 3 1,464,007 264,628
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2002

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2001)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments
Taxes Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Customer Deposits
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounis Payable
Deferred Revenue
Customer Deposits
Reserve-FPending Claims
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY:
Retained Earnings-Unreserved

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
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Employee Liability
Insurance Insurance
$ 2,709,235 $ 2,442.408

- 786

29,598 -

$ 2,738,833 $ 2,443,194
$ 1,425 $ -
- 786

114,340 274,904
115,765 275,690
2,623,068 2,167,504
2,623,068 2,167,504
$ 2,738,833 $ 2,443,194




Exhibit F-1

Unemployment Totals

Compensation Arena Revolving 2002 2001
$ 76,985 $ 16,044 190,309 $ 5,434,981 $ 5,730,572
- - - 786 1,542
- 5,253 117,985 152,836 22,671
- 185,390 - 185,390 -
$ 76,985 $ 206,687 308,294 $ 5,773,993 $ 5,754,785
$ 3,171 $ 21,297 271,423 $ 297,316 $ 189,291
- - - 786 1,115
- 185,390 - 185,390 -
- - - 389,244 509,817
3,171 206,687 271,423 872,736 700,223
73,814 - 36,871 4,901,257 5,054,562
73,814 - 36,871 4,901,257 5,054,562
$ 76,985 $ 206,687 308,294 $ 5,773,993 $ 5,754,785
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

OPERATING REVENUES
Employer Contributions
Charges for Services
Rentals
Miscellaneous
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Costs of Services
Administration
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental
Investment Income
In Lieu of Taxes
Taxes
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES/EXFENSE)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS FROM (TO) OTHER FUNDS

General Fund

Special Revenue
Capital Projects

internal Service

Trust and Agency
General Fund

Special Revenue

TOTAL TRANSFERS FROM (TO) OTHER FUNDS

NET INCOME (LOSS)
RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING

RETAINED EARNINGS - ENDING
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Employee Liability
insurance Insurance
3 2,094,848 -
9,258 -
2,104,108 R
2,092,124 379,848
355 125
2,082,479 379,973
11,627 {379,973)
- 139,089
98,312 04,868
- 308
98,312 235,165
109,939 (144,808)
(89,5686) {17,428)
(89,568) {17,428)
20,373 (162,238)
2,602,695 2,329,740
3 2,623,068 2,167,504




Exhibit F-2

Unemployment Totals
Compensation Arena Revolving 2002 2001

$ " $ - b - 2,004,848 $ 2,052,460
- 1,661,827 - 1,661,827 -

- 7,900 - 7,900 -

- 8,782 2,194 20,234 16,586

- 1,678,509 2,194 3,784,809 2,052,460

20,735 1,594,841 - 4,087,548 2,475,086

- - - 480 1,026

20,735 1,594,841 - 4,088,028 2,476,112
(20,735) 83,668 2,194 {303,219) {423,652)

- - - 139,989 -

2,109 3,334 - 198,623 437,178

- - - - 132

- - - 308 2,197

2,109 3,334 - 338,920 456,093

{18,626) 87,002 2,194 35,701 32,441

877 - - 877 7,299

54 - - 54 113

3 - - 31 140

4,028 “ - 4,028 -

- - - - 452
- (82,974) - (189,968) (53,483)

- {4,028) - (4,028) -
4,990 (87,002) - (189,008) {45,479)
{13,638) - 2,194 (153,305) (13,038)

87,450 - 34,677 5,054,562 5,067,600

$ 73,814 $ - $ 36,871 4,901,257 $ 5,054,562
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001)

Employee Liability
Insurance Insurance
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts From Customers and Users % - $ 756
Receipts From Employer 2,081,278 -
Other Operating Cash Receipts 9,258 -
Payments to Suppliers (2,227,361) {365,215}
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES {136,825) {364,459}
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
intergovernmental - 139,989
Taxes - 308
In Lieu of Taxes - -
Transfers (to) Other Funds (89,566) {17.428)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (89,566) 122,869
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 98,312 94 868
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 98,312 94,868
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {128,079} {146,722)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING 2,837,314 2,589,130
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING 2,709,235 2,442 408
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss) 11,627 {379,973)
Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Income (o
Nat Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
(Increase) Decrease in Taxes Recejvable - 756
{Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (13,570} -
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 778 -
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue - (329)
Increase (Decrease) in Estimated Pending Claims (135,660) 15,087
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS (148,452) 15,514
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (136,825) $ (364.459)
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Exhibit F-3

Unemployment Totals
Compensalion Arena Revolving 2002 2001
% - 3 1,664,474 $ 2,232,679 3,897,909 ¥ 7,255
. - - 2,081,278 2,037,092
- 8,782 2,194 20,234 16,586
{17.564) (1,573,544) (2,261,242) {6,444,926) {2,306,835)
(17,564) 99,712 (26,369) (445,505} (262,488)
- - - 139,989 -
- - - 308 2,197
- - - - 132
4,980 {87,002) - {189,006} {45,479)
4,950 {87,002) - (48,709) {26,564)
2,109 3,334 - 198,623 437,178
2,109 3,334 - 198,623 437,178
(10,465) 16,044 (26,369) (295,591) 148,126
87,450 - 216,678 5,730,572 5,582,446
76,985 16,044 180,309 5,434,981 5,730,572
{20,735) 83,668 2,184 {303,219} {423,652}
- - - 756 2,645
“ {(5,253) (111,342) (130,165) (16472)
3,17 21,297 82,779 108,025 {14,117}
) . - (329) (2,309)
. - - {120,573) 191,417
3,171 16,044 (28,563) {142,286) 161,164
$ {17,564) ¥ 98,712 3 (26,369) (445,505) & (262,488)
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CiTY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2002
{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2001)

Expendable
Trust
Agency Funds Funds
Deferred
Firemen's Sick Arena Tree
Pension Leave Revalving Memaorial
ASSETS
Cash and Investments 3 579 $ 741,036 $ - $ 15,713
Taxes Receivable 8,361 - - -
Accounts Receivable 5,302 - - -
Due from Other Funds - 27,428 - -
Custemer Deposits - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 14,242 3 768,464 $ - $ 15713
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 3 579 3 - $ -
Due to Emplaoyees - 768,464 - -
Due to Other Entities 5,302 - - -
Deferred Revenue 8,361 - - -
Securities Lending Collateral “ - - -
Customer Deposits - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,242 768,464 - -
FUND BALANCES:
Unreserved, Undesignated - - - 15,713
TOTAL FUND BALANCES - - - 15,713
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 14,242 $ 768,464 5 - $ 15,713
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Exhibit G-1

Expendable Trust Funds Pension Trust Funds
Library Christmas  Lewis & Clark City Police Totals
Memorial Lights Expedition Pension Pension 2002 2001
$ 13,869 $ 20,839 $ 305,183 $ 30,086,631 $ 14,111,491 45,295,441 51,736,921
- - - 12,066 5,647 26,074 24,935
- - - 15,593 6,713 27,608 81,484
- - - - - 27,428 54,852
- - - - - - 239,500
$ 13,869 $ 20,939 $ 305,183 $ 30,114,280 $ 14,123,851 45,376,551 52,137,692
$ 100 $ - $ - $ 4,007 $ 1,414 6,100 38,858
- - - 8,205,623 3,406,583 12,380,670 14,063,543
- - - - - 5,302 9,165
- - - 12,066 5,647 26,074 18,065
- - - 1,736,344 710,261 2,446,605 2,707,410
- - - - - - 239,500
100 - - 8,858,040 4,123,905 14,864,751 17,076,541
13,769 20,839 305,183 20,156,250 9,999,346 30,511,800 35,081,151
13,769 20,939 305,183 20,156,250 9,999,846 30,511,800 38,061,151
$ 13,869 $§ 20,939 $ 305,183 $ 30,114,280 $ 14,123,851 45,376,551 52,137,692
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CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2001)

Arena
Revolving

Tree
Memarial

REVENUES

Intergovernmental $
Charges for Sales and Services

Rentals

Investment Income

Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Highways and Streets
Culture and Recreation

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER}) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In:

Special Revenue

Debt Service
Operating Transfers Qut:

General Fund

Internal Service (1,035,364) -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1,035,364) -

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND

OTHER FINANCING USES (1,035,364) 1,124

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 1,035,364 14,589

FUND BALANCES - ENDING $

- $ 15,713
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Exhibit G-2

Library Christmas Lewis & Clark Totals
Memorial Lights Expedition 2002 2001
$ $ - 3 - $ - % 5,000
- - - - 478,983
- - - - 256,100
663 549 183 1,832 53,224
34,618 2,147 - 37,452 9,648
35,281 2,696 183 39,284 802,955
- - - - 375
25,449 5,217 . 30,666 589,320
25,449 5217 - 30,666 589,695
8,832 (2,521) 183 8,618 213,260
- - 300,000 300,000 -
- - - - 24,578
- - - - (101,827)
- - - (1,035,364) (452)
- - 300,000 (735,364) (77,701)
9,832 (2,521) 300,183 (726,746) 135,559
3,937 23,460 5,000 1,082,350 946,791
$ 13,769 $ k] 305,183 3 355,604 $ 1,082,350

20,939
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Exhibit G-3

FIREMEN'S PENSION AGENCY

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to Other Entities

DEFERRED SICK LEAVE
ASSETS
Cash
Due From Other Funds
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to Employees

TOTALS - ALL. AGENCY FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables
Due From Other Funds
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to Other Entities

Due tp Employees
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Balance Balance

January 1, December 31,
2002 Additions Deletions 2002

3 1,254 270,551 271,226 $ 579
12,658 67,063 66,058 13,663
$ 13,912 337,614 337,284 $ 14,242
3 13,912 337,614 337,284 $ 14,242
$ 692,762 158,214 109,940 3 741,036
54,853 - 27,426 27,427
3 747,615 158,214 137,366 3 768,463
3 747,615 158,214 137,366 5 768,463
3 694,018 428,765 381,166 3 741,615
12,658 67,063 66,058 13,663
54,853 - 27,426 27427
8 761,527 495,828 474 650 3 782,705
$ 13,912 337,614 337,284 % 14,242
747,615 158,214 137,366 768,463
$ 761,527 495 828 474,650 2 782,705
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2001)

ADDITIONS
CONTRIBUTIONS:
Employer
Employee
INVESTMENT INCOME:
Loss on Investmenis
Interest and Dividends
Securities Lending Income

Less: Investment Expense
Less: Securities Lending Expenses
Net investment income (loss)
TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS:
TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS
Administration
Benefits
Transfer to Other Funds
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING
NET ASSETS - ENDING

Exhibit G-4

TOTALS
City Police

Pension Pension 2002 2001
3 409,855 3 203,630 $ 613,485 $ 484,458
403,216 10,216 413,432 769,945
(2,637,016) (1,373,776) (4,010,792) (1,934,566)
B15,536 389,201 1,204,737 1,336,457
36,056 14,647 50,703 138,039
{1,785,424) (969,928) {2,755,352) {460,070)
(120,345) (63,366) (183,711) (118,510)
{31,661) {12,7386) {44,397) (128,682)
(1,937,430) (1,046,030) {2,983,460) (707,262)
37,640 16,625 54,265 8,287
{1,086,719} (815,5659) {(1,802,278) 547,141
16,528 12,383 28,911 30,405
1,372,832 488,258 1,861,000 1,688,774
17,819 12,407 30,326 27,783
1,407,279 513,048 1,920,327 1,719,179
(2,493,988) {1,328,607) (3.822,605) {1,191,534)
22,650,248 11,328,553 33,878,801 35,170,335
$ 20,156,250 $ 5,998,946 $ 30,156,196 $ 33,978,801
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Exhibit H-1
CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY SOURCE
DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001
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2002 2001
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
Land 1,689,788 1,689,788
Buildings 47,553,058 46,154,050
Improvements Other than Buildings 51,777 51,777
Machinery and Equipment 18,904,058 17,310,001
Construction in progress 1,658,491 -
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 69,757,172 65,205,616
INVESTMENTS IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
General Fund 10,273,062 8,789,167
Special Revenue Funds 16,345,372 16,070,247
State Government 105,274 105,274
Federal Government 2,115,786 2,115,786
Capital Projects Funds 39,642,016 36,849,480
Trust and Agency Funds 1,167,185 1,167,185
Donations 108,477 108,477
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 69,757,172 65,205,616




CITY OF BISMARCK , NORTH DAKOTA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2602

General Fixed

Exhibit H-2

General Fixed

Assets Assels
11172002 Additions Deductions 1213112002
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Administration and Management 3 11,353 3 - $ - 5 11,353
Fiscal and Information Services 199,433 29,055 - 228,488
Common Sofiware 94,927 69,180 - 164,117
City/County Office Building 2,959,700 - - 2,959,700
Bismarck-Mandan Visitors Bureau 1,004,475 - - 1,004,475
Planning 24,741 - - 24,741
E/M Transit System 1,794,033 180,800 - 1,974,933
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 6,088,662 279,145 - 6,367,807
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Police 4,273,865 125,429 25,947 4,373,347
Fire and Inspections 4,589,546 1,131,346 249,192 5,471,700
Combined Communications Center 867,337 86,649 - 953,986
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 9,730,748 1,343,424 275,139 10,799,033
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS:
Roads and Streels 4,498,198 506,619 316,518 4,688,299
Engineering 298,097 21,200 38,844 281,353
Forestry 387,037 77,543 - 464,580
TOTAL HIGHWAYS AND STREETS 5,184,232 605,362 355,362 5,434,232
HEALTH:
Bismarck Burleigh Public Health 21,808 - - 21,808
TOTAL HEALTH 21,808 - - 21,808
CULTURE AND RECREATION:
City Auditorium 3,471,798 - - 3,471,798
Civic Center 29,960,469 1,356,616 - 31,317,085
Library 10,747,899 39,019 - 10,786,918
TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION 44,180,166 1,395,635 - 45,575,801
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS: - 1,558,491 - 1,558,491
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $ 65,205,618 $ 5,182,057 3 630,501 $ 69,757,172
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FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Adeministration and Management
Fiscal and Information Services
Common Software
City/County Office Building
Bismarck-Mandan Visitors Bureau
Plarning
E/H Transit System

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

PUBLIC SAFETY:
Police
Fire and inspections
Combined Communications Center
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS:
Roads and Streets
Engineering
Forestry
TOTAL HIGHWAYS AND STREETS

HEALTH:
Bismarck Burteigh Public Health
TOTAL HEALTH

CULTURE AND RECREATION:
City Auditorium
Civic Center
Library

TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION

CONTRUCTION IN PROGRESS:

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKCTA

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002

Exhibit H-3

improvements Machinery
Other than and

Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Total
$ - $ - $ - 3 11,353 3 11,353
- - - 228,488 228,488
- - - 164,117 164,117
- 2,923,597 - 36,103 2,858,700
200,000 804,475 - - 1,004,475
- - - 24,741 24,741
108,421 795,444 - 1,071,068 1,874,933
308,421 4,523 516 - 1,535,870 6,367,807
499,500 2,771,095 51,777 1,050,975 4,373,347
245,767 1,965,325 - 3,260,608 5,471,700
- - - 953,986 953,986
745,267 4,736,420 51,777 5,265,569 10,799,033
- - - 4,688,299 4,688,208
- - - 281,353 281,353
- - - 464,580 464,580
- - - 5,434,232 5,434,232
- - - 21,808 21,808
- - - 21,808 21,808
11,500 3,454,948 - 5,350 3,471,798
300,600 30,127,240 - 889,245 31,317,085
324,000 4,710,934 - 5,751,984 10,786,918
636,100 38,293,122 - 6,646,579 45 575,801
1,558,491 1,558,491
$ 1,689,788 $ 49,111,549 3 51,777 $ 18,804,058 $ 69,757,172
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CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

DECEMBER 31, 2002

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2001

AMOUNT AVAILABLE AND TO BE PROVIDED
FOR RETIREMENT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION
BONDS, AND GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT:

Amount Availabte in Debt Service Funds:

Special Assessment with Governmentat Commitment

Highway Construction

Sales Tax Bonds

Motel, Liquor, Restaurant Bonds
Total Amount Available

AMOUNT TO BE PROVIDED:
Retirement of General Long-term Debt:

Special Assessment with Governmental Commitment

Sales Tax Bonds

Motel, Liguor Restaurant Bonds

Highway Construction

Compensated Absences

Employee Termination Benefits
Total to be Provided

Total Available and to be Provided

GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBT PAYABLE:
General Obligation Bonds Payable:
Highway Construction 1995
Highway Construction 1992
Highway Construction 1996
Total General Obligation Bonds Payable

Revenue Bonds Payable:
Sales Tax Bonds
Motel, Liquor, and Restaurant
Total Revenue Bonds Payable

Special Assessment Bonds Payable,
with Governmental Commitment:
Sidewalks Bonds
Refunding Series A thru Z
Total Special Assessment Bonds Payable

Accrued Liability for Compensated Absences
Accrued Liability for Employee Termination Benefits
Total Miscellaneous Payable

Total General Long-Term Debt Payable

B4

Exhibit H-4

2002 2001
11,522,260 14,322,690
18,474 284,880
- 463,680
964,551 935,890
12,505,285 16,007,140
20,947,740 21,772,310
3,050,000 798,498
7,025,449 7,494,110
41,526 62,942
1,468,962 1,282,164
92,608 185,214
32,626,285 31,605,238
45,131,570 47,612,378
60,000 115,000
- 155,000
- 75,000
60,000 345,000
3,050,000 1,265,000
7,990,000 8,430,000
11,040,000 9,605,060
2,965,000 2,880,000
29,505,000 33,215,000
32,470,000 36,095,000
1,468,962 1,292,164
92,608 185,214
1,661,570 1,477,378
45,131,570 47,612,378
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State Highway Department

Alcohol Enforcement 20.600 9,202
Occupant Protection Plan 20.600 7,632
16,924
Traffic Crash Reconstruction 1,563
Alecohol Saturation Patrol 3,771
22,259

Federal Emergency Management Agency
North Dakota Department of Emergency Management

Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness 7,500
Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness #2 9,387
Storm Repairs - Fire & Inspections 1,323
Storm Repairs - Forestry 13,061
Storm Repairs - Police 43,813
Storm Repairs - Engineering 1,517

76,602

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
North Dakota Department of Health

Women's Way-Breast & Cervical Cancer Screening 93.919 50,622
Immunization 03.268 25,278
Tobacco Prevention & Control 93.283 49,435
ND Health Tracks 93.991 72,182
Ryan White CARE 93917 12,573
Student Heaith Manager 93.994 4,879
Maternal & Child Health/QPOP 93.994 76,477
81,357

Health Alert Network 93.283 8,254
Bmk/Bur Public Health School Nurses 12,234
Stand for Children 2,060
Flu Shots 6,200
Blood Lead Surveillance 1,353
321,487

U.S. Forest Service
North Dakota Forest Service
Missouri River Study 358

358

U.S. Fireman's Association
North Pakota Fireman's Association
Bio-Terrorism Training Grant 13,720

13,720

Totals 3 6,023,194
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 1 = SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented on the accrual basis of accounting,

NOTE 2 — AGENCY OR PASS-THROUGH NUMBERS

Certain pass-through entities have not provided us with the identifying numbers, therefore, they are not included
in this schedule.
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CITY OF BISMARCK

BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

2.

6.
7.

The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of the
City of Bismarck.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Bismarck were
disclosed during the audit.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of Bismarck
expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal programs.

Audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for the City of Bismarck are reported in
Part C of this schedule.

The programs tested as major programs were Housing and Urban Development CFDA #14.218; Airport
Improvement Project CFDA #20.106; State Domestic Preparedness Equipment Support Program
#16.007.

The threshold for distinguishing a Type A program was $300,000

The City of Bismarck was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT - NONE

C. FINDINGS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM - NONE
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